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Corporate Information
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CORPORATE PROFILE

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
("the Company”) is a leisure wooden product enterprise in the
People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") with over 20 years of
experience in production and sales of leisure household products
and timber houses and their related parts and structures. The
Company has established its sales network through distributors as
well as its self-operated retail stores network, and has launched a
series of leisure wooden products to promote a leisure and natural
lifestyle. The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Xie Qingmei (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Hok Sum, FcrpA ACis ACS

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Zheyan
Mr. Yu Hok Sum

AUDITORS

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Eversheds Sutherland

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China, Zhangping Branch
China Construction Bank, Zhangping Branch
Bank of China, Zhangping Branch

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

unit 1610

The Metropolis Tower
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HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Fushan Industrial District
Zhangping, Fujian, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.merrygardenholdings.com

STOCK CODE
1237
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Financial Summary

BTS2

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

(B = BIETIN - UARHETTITR)

Year ended 31 December

Profitability data and ratios BBERILE BE+_-_A=1+—HLEFEE
2017 2016
—=—+tF —E—RF
Revenue WA 462,191 442,328
Timber houses and their related parts RE R EABRA R4 KB
and structures 302,761 243,406
Leisure household products REIREER
Outdoor and indoor furniture EANIMREBER 17,467 28,442
Recreational products WEVEE S 9,123 18,045
Landscape garden products EEEER 64,556 67,285
Pet-home designs BYEEmM 19,686 12,640
Trading of timber MBS 28,528 60,005
Renewable energy products BERRE® 20,070 12,505
Gross profit EF 32,173 47,822
Gross profit margin S 3P 7.0% 10.8%
Net loss SFIEB (40,556) (22,295)
Net profit margin T m A & -8.8% -5.0%
Loss per share (RMB) BREER(ARE) (0.0134) (0.0087)
At At
31 December 31 December
Financial position data and ratios MEEARERILE 2017 2016
R-E—t&F N E—NF
+=ZA=+—B +ZA=+—H
Non-current assets FREBEE 772,335 740,752
Current assets REVEE 721,148 882,530
Current liabilities wRBAE 324,469 418,778
Non-current liabilities EmEAE 38,424 75,787
Equity attributable to equity shareholders #z5#EH AEEE R 1,130,590 1,128,717
Current ratio (Note 1) BN R (KaE 1) 2.2:1 2.1:1
Quick ratio (Note 2) RENLL K (ffa12) 1.2:1 131
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) (days) FEEEXE(ME3)(R) 276 303
Trade receivables turnover days & 5 R IE BB R
(Note 4) (days) (HtzE4)(FR) 84 15
Turnover days on prepayment for R RTEN SR AR E(F75E5) (R)
raw materials (Note 5) (days) 70 86
Total borrowings to total assets (Note 6) & E4A5EER A EE L R (H716) 16.7% 25.5%
Net borrowings to total equity (Note 7) & & F B @IERS LR (ff7E7) 5.1% 8.2%

PREYERBRAT
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Financial Summary continea
I E e

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

(B = EIETN - UARIETTITR)

Year ended 31 December

Operational data BEEHRE BE+_-_A=1+—HLFEE
2017 2016
—$—tFE T AF

Staff costs 8 TR A 32,607 38,761

Capital expenditures BARMX 95,711 89,167

Research and development costs TR 21,049 16,384

Effect tax rate (Note 8) EWRBIE (K71 8) -6.2% -7.8%

Notes: Mfat -

1. Current ratio is the ratio of current assets to current liabilities. 1. RELEARDEELTHAB/OLE -

2. Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets (excluding inventories) by 2. RELEZRDEE (TEEFE)RARDABTE -
current liabilities.

3. Inventory turnover days is calculated by dividing average inventories by cost of 3. GEASRBRTHEERIATEXARBIRIA365 KRG
inventories and multiplying the resulting value by 365 days. He

4. Trade receivables turnover days is calculated by dividing average trade 4. B 9 RENCGRIE B EREIZ T E 5 EUGRIE (T e i
receivables (excluding VAT) by turnover and multiplying the resulting value by B BRI S R IR LA 365 KT H -

365 days.

5. Turnover days on prepayment for raw materials is calculated by dividing average 5. R R A B B R UL T RMETE R SRR ATF B R
prepayment for raw materials by cost of inventories (excluding staff costs, R(PBIEBIRA - I8 RIFEKA) AT 365 KET
depreciation and research and development costs) and multiplying the resulting "o
value by 365 days.

6. Total borrowings to total assets is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans 6. EEARELEE L TIRRITERK BIEE AT A
and interest-bearing borrowings by total assets. HWEENE -

7. Net borrowings to total equity is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans and 7. BEFREEAEG L RIRBTERRTEEERE 1
interest-bearing borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged BRI RBLEEYREERER  RALRERE -
deposits by total equity.

8. Effective tax rate is calculated as income tax divided by loss before taxation. 8. BB ERUMGHBR AR ATEIETE -

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017



Financial Summary contineo)

S = e

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is depicted below:

(BHBEHETIN  UARETTIT)

AEESIAEMBRFEZREREE  BER
RSB EIIRIT

RESULTS 4
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2t —T-RF —T-hLF ZT-WF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARBTIT ARETR
Revenue WA 462,191 442,328 639,999 701,231 475,051
Cost of sales SHERA (430,018) (394,506) (517,542) (522,818) (323,317)
Gross profit EF| 32,173 47,822 122,457 178,413 151,734
Other revenue HiplgA 15,777 29,308 32,908 17,888 23,070
Other net (loss)/gain Hitn (F518), e F 5 (14,884) (21,877) (7,030) 2,172 48,683
Selling and distribution expenses  $4%& &4 4R % (17,600) (20,219) (22,671) (21,714 (13,818)
Administrative expenses THAX (47,249) (46,546) (55,554) (56,279) (46,979)
(Loss)/profit from operations S (B18),/mF (31,783) (11,512) 70,110 120,480 162,690
Share of (losses)/profits of DMEBE AT (1),
associates bl (204) (129) 20 - -
Finance costs AR A (6,216) (9,037) (16,627) (11,326) (5,463)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRIEA(EBR), % (38,203) (20,678) 53,503 109,154 157,227
Income tax expenses Frisfif (2,353) (1,617) (9,701) (18,344) (32,806)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)HF (40,556) (22,295) 43,802 90,810 124,421
(Loss)/earnings per share Sk (ER),/BH
— Basic and diluted —EAREE
(RMB) (ARE) (0.01) 0.01) 0.03 0.08 0.12
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE - BERES
As at 31 December
®B+=-RA=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2t —T-RF ZT-hLF ZT-WF T-—=
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Total Assets BERE 1,493,483 1,623,282 1,624,667 1,281,732 807,058
Total Liabilities BfERAE 362,893 494,565 489,157 484,390 329,886
Total Equity EmATE 1,130,590 1,128,717 1,135,510 797,342 477,172

TREMERERAR | 7
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Chairman’s Statement
F fE s

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“the Board") of directors (“the Directors”) of
the Company, | hereby announce the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (“the
Year”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Year, the revenue of the Group amounted to RMB462
million, representing a 4.5% increase as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2016. Although the Group recorded a slight
increase in revenue, the loss attributable to shareholders during the
Year increased to RMB41 million. The Board considered that the
increase was mainly attributable to (i) a decrease in gross profit
margin caused by stiff competition worldwide; (i) a loss in the fair
value of derivation financial instruments for the Year; and (iii) a
decrease in policy subsidies of government received for the Year.
The Board recommended not to declare any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The world shows a fluctuating and challenging economic picture
during the Year. The United States of America (the “US") has raised
interest rates thrice and started shrinking the balance sheet.
Although the GDP of Germany, our largest market in Europe, is
unceasingly growing, the growth rate for permits granted in relation
to the building construction for dwelling slowdown a lot after robust
growth last year. As for China, the economy continues to show
steady progress in the year 2017. During the Year, the Group's slight
increase in revenue was contributed by the slight increase in
revenue from China market and strong growth in revenue from
Australian market due to the newly launched landscape garden
products and timber houses and their related parts and structures.
However, these increase in revenue is offset by the decrease in the
revenue generated from the North America and Europe. As for
business segment profit, each shows improvement except for the
manufacturing and sales of wooden products, whereas
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy products has shown
the greatest improvement among all. The decrease in the Group's
gross profit margin is attributable to the stiff competition worldwide.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement (continvea
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PROSPECTS

In 2017, the US Federal Reserve raised interest rates thrice and
started normalizing the balance sheet. This added great uncertainty
to the year 2018. Although the economic data of Germany continued
to growth, dwelling construction has recorded a slowdown
comparing to a robust increment last year. The fluctuation in the
exchange rate of EURO make the customers become more cautious
in placing orders.

As for China, recent economic data beat expectations and the
Group's revenue for the Year from China seems to be stabilized. We
envisage that the demand of China and Asia-Pacific region will
gradually recover, contributing more revenue to the Group.

During the Year, the Group successfully launched landscape garden
products timber houses and their related parts and structures in the
Australia and we expect the revenue from the Australian market
could become one of our major sales regions in the coming years.
This could help developing a more diverse revenue source and
customer base for the Group. The Group will continue seeking new
business opportunities.

Meanwhile, standing on the well establishment of the Group'’s self-
owned “Merry Garden” brand and the impeccable strategy for the
Group in the development of renewable energy products, the Group
looks forward to making further breakthroughs and expanding our
market shares internationally.

The development during the Year, especially in Australia, has
provided a solid foundation for the Group’s further growth in the
coming years.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks for
the support and trust from our shareholders and business partners. |
would also like to thank our employees for your efforts and
contributions to the Group over the Year.

Xie Qingmei
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE R wmEE AT

BUSINESS REVIEW E AC1)
Our business eSS

Timber houses and related Outdoor and indoor furniture

parts and structures
NE RABRE D+ R+

Recreational products Landscape garden products

BBIRER ERIMRBER EEHEmM

Pet-home designs Trading of timber Renewable energy products

EYEER AMES BAERRER

Mode of sales 1.  OEM/ODM R I 4f
e 2. Self-owned brand “Merry Garden” B& @i [EERE |
HEA P
3. Trading &
Customers & =8
End-users (through Retailers / Distributors Trading companies
self-owned retail Home Improvement and other
outlets and online sales) Centres manufacturers
RinfEAE TER/ D IEE B RERk
(BRE LSRG LEHEE) RIBEHE HibAER

10 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017



Management Discussion and Analysis continea

EEEH I E S

BUSINESS REVIEW
Segment review

During the Year, the performance of our business segments are as
follows:

RBEBE
gal=iEl =
RAFE - RMEEEIH2RAMT -

Segment revenue % to total segment
derived from external revenue derived from  Reportable segment
customers Change  external customers (loss)/profit (\ote 1)
LEEMPERZ DES Sk
FEEMBERZSBBA -] #oBBAESL (&H)/&% (f7:—
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
- ol - “E-tf —TF ZE-t%
RMB'000 RMB'000 % % %  RMB'000 RMVB'000
ARBTRT ARETRT Rl B ot ARWTFR ARETET
Manufacturing and sales EERBEALR
of wooden products 436,841 421,761 3.6% 94.5% 95.4% (44,515) (31,866)
Retail business TEEH 5,280 7,930 -33.4% 1.2% 1.8% (1,946) (2,459)
Projects of outdoor wooden  FAMKELRIBR
products - 132 -100% 0.0% 0.0% - (162)
Manufacturing and sales of EEREE
renewable energy products HERRER 20,070 12,505 60.5% 4.3% 2.8% 3,541 1,249
462191 442328 100.0%  1000% (42,9200  (33,239)

During the Year, the Group continued to consolidate its core
business into the following segments: manufacturing and sales of
wooden products, retail business and projects relating to outdoor
wooden products. The Group’s relatively new business in the
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy products has
successfully continued operation for the fourth year since its
commencement in 2014. The revenue derived from each of the four
business segments during the Year were RMB436,841,000,
RMB5,280,000, RMB Nil and RMB20,070,000 (2016: RMB421,761,000,
RMB7,930,000, RMB132,000 and RMB12,505,000), representing
94.5%, 1.2%, 0.0% and 4.3% of the total revenue derived (2016:
95.4%, 1.8%, 0.0% and 2.8%) respectively.

Note 1. Reported segment (loss)/profit has excluded the after tax effect of government

subsidies.

REE  AEMEEEEROEBRESBUTS
B:EEREEAER TEEBKARESI
RERBEBZEE - AEEREERBEER L
REMAERNESENESE S —NFERBE
BLARIERIFEZENF - NFE - WEEKS
HEBEENRADBIA AR 436,841,0007T
AR #528000mL ARBZETRARKE
20,070,000 7T (=& — /< F : AR 421,761,000
7L~ AR®7,930,0007T + AR #132,00070 & A
R #12,505,0007C ) © 5 Bl {h TR B 8 1 A
94.5% + 1.2% ~ 0.0% % 43%° ( = T — X &
95.4% - 1.8% ~ 0.0% 2. 2.8%) °
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Manufacturing and sales of wooden products remains the Group's
largest business segment, contributing 94.5% of the Group’s
revenue. The revenue derived from such business increased by 3.6%.
The overall increase in revenue in this segment is due to the growth
in timber houses and their related parts and structures market and
pet-home designs product in the PRC and Australia, but offset by the
decrease in revenue in trading of timber and outdoor and indoor
furniture.

Due to the effect of exchange rate fluctuation and continuing stiff
competition erodes the gross profit margin, leading to the overall
increase in loss recorded from the manufacturing and sales of
wooden products segment by RMB12.6 million. The Group has
shown a sign of improvement as demonstrated by slightly increased
in revenue by 3.6% in 2017.

The Group's self-owned brand is engaged in the retail of leisure
household products. Since its establishment in 2010, its sales
network has grown to include major cities in 8 provinces in the PRC
with over 50 self-operated stores and distribution points. The Group
aims to improve the operation by improving its cost controls.

As mentioned above, the Group has continued its renewable energy
business for the fourth successful year. This aspect of the business
involves the recycling of residue, such as leftover sawdust from the
production of our wooden products, into biomass pellet fuel. The
biomass pellet fuel and its production process, are fully compliant
with the national development directions on new energies in the
PRC.

The Group’s renewable energy business recorded an increase of
60.5% in revenue to RMB20.1 million and an increase of 183.5% in
profit to RMB3.5 million (2016: revenue of RMB12.5 million and profit
of RMB1.2 million) during the Year. As the operation becomes more
stable, it is expected that this business will generate more profit for
the Group in the future.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis ontinea
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Market review T35 Bl g8

During the Year, the distribution of revenue from our global markets ~ RANEE » HFIRE 2 HETIHEZ WA HIT
are as follows:

The PRC
R

Asia Pacific

lusive of the PRC) :
{ TAE : Australia
TEERE) B

4% 18%

Revenue % to total revenue
KA HHEEATSE

2017 2016 Change 2017 2016

et —T—FXF %y ZB—tE T F

RMB'000 RMB'000 % % %

AR®TE ARET Bt Bk Baoth

The PRC s 107,332 88,019 21.9% 23% 20%

North America JE=M 236,279 273,842 -13.7% 51% 62%

Europe BN 18,303 44,017 -58.4% 4% 10%
Asia Pacific G N

(Exclusive of the PRC) (RNEEHE) 16,945 16,160 4.9% 4% 4%

Australia SN 83,332 20,290 310.7% 18% 4%

462,191 442,328 4.5% 100% 100%

hREYERAERA R
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The Group’s aim is to take advantage of the opportunities within the
market to develop the Group’s business at a fast pace whilst
complying with all relevant laws, rules and regulations.

Since 2016, the North American market has become the largest
market of the Group, contributing 51% (2016: 62%) of the total
revenue of the Group. The revenue from the North American market
further declined by 13.7% to RMB236.3 million (2016: RMB273.8
million). The US Federal Reserve increased interest rates by a
quarter-point, the third time in 2017, setting the target range
between 1.25% and 1.5% in December 2017. It is expected to further
increase the interest rates in 2018. In addition, the US Federal
Reserve also started to shrink the balance sheet. This measures may
reduce the investment in fixed assets in the US in 2018, therefore the
Group will continue to closely monitor and operate the market
through enhancing our products’ competitiveness.

The GDP of the PRC has recorded a growth rate of 6.9% in the year
2017, representing a rise of 0.2% compared with that of 2016. It is
the first year that the PRC's growth rate exceeds the preceding year
since 2010. Despite the slowdown in the growth of the PRC fixed
asset investment during the Year, the Group’s revenue from the PRC
market increased by 21.9% to RMB107.3 million (2016: RMB88.0
million), representing 23% (2016: 20%) of the total revenue. This is
contributed by the stronger sales in following two segments, timber
houses and their related parts and structures and pet-home designs
products. The Group envisages that the PRC market will become
better along with the economy.

Germany is the largest market in Europe to our Group. Although the
GDP of Germany is unceasingly growing, the growth rate for permits
granted for dwelling construction has recorded a slowdown
comparing to a robust increment last year. The revenue from the
European market decreased by 58% to RMB18.3 million (2016:
RMBA44.0 million). The Group noticed that the customers have been
cautious for placing orders, partly due to the great fluctuations in the
exchange rate of EUR. The Group will continue to seek opportunity to
increase the revenue generated from the European market.
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The Australian market has become the third-largest market during
the Year, contributing 18% (2016: 4%) of the Group'’s total revenue.
The Group recorded a strong growth by 310.7% to RMB83.3 million
(2016: RMB20.3 million) due to the successful launch of timber
houses and their related parts and structure and landscape garden
products in the region. The Group expects that it could continue to
grow in the year 2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit margin by product
category

RAFERMNTISERABE=ATSE  EAEHE
BTN Z18% (ZF—7RF 1 4%) - BRIIRE
NEEREREEBSGRBHUARBEEE
M AEEHBRYERI07%EARESIIH
B (Z2—RF: ARKE203EET) - 1A5&H
TBHENR-Z— \FaHEER -

g JEI)
WAREME (RERDREID)

Revenue % to total revenue Gross margin
KA HBBAERL EX

2017 2016 Change 2017 2016 2017 2016
- ot - 28 ZB—tFfF _TF IZB—tf _—T5%
RMB'000 RMB'000 % % % % %
ARBTRT ARETRT Aotk B Bl AL BAL

Timber houses and their NN TR
related parts and structures Rig# 302,761 243,406 24.4% 65.4% 55.0% 4.0% 10.3%

Leisure household products R G EER

Outdoor and indoor fumiture  ZEXSMFIEES 17,467 28,442 -38.6% 3.8% 6.4% 11.0% 13.0%
Recreational products FHEER 9,123 18,045 -49.4% 2.0% 4.1% 20.5% 7.1%
Landscape garden products BEEBER 64,556 67,285 -4.1% 14.0% 15.2% 11.7% 18.3%
Pet-home designs ENEER 19,686 12,640 55.7% 4.3% 2.9% 6.1% 18.5%
Trading of timber KBS 28,528 60,005 -52.5% 6.2% 13.6% 5.9% 1.3%
Renewable energy products BERRER 20,070 12,505 60.5% 4.3% 2.8% 29.1% 19.2%
Total st 462,191 442,328 4.5% 100.0% 100.0% 7.0% 10.8%

Sales of timber houses and their related parts and structures
remained the largest income stream of the Group by product
category in 2017. Revenue from such category increased by 24.4% to
RMB302.8 million (2016 RMB243.4 million), representing 65.4% (2016:
55.0%) of total sales for the Year, mainly due to the rebound of
domestic sales and the strong growth in the Australian market.

RZT—+tF  KRERABEBHREFHEER
EmBEREDMREAEBERKRARE - BELE
AU AIE IN24.4%Z ARBI28BFET(ZF
—RNF ARBUIAFETT)  EAFEHER
HEH) 65.4% (Z T — /N4 : 55.0%) * TEHMKENR
HERBREMNTERDER -
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Among the leisure household products, the revenue of landscape
garden products slightly decreased by 4.1% to RMB64.6 million (2016:
RMB67.3 million) and continue as the product category generating
the second highest income stream for the Group, representing 14.0%
(2016: 15.2%) of the total revenue for the Year. The decrease was
mainly due to the decline of the North American market offsetting
the strong growth in the Australian market.

The revenue of pet-home designs products has been growing since
2015 from around RMB7 million to RMB19.7 million, the growth was
mainly contributed by the sales from the North America and PRC
market.

During the Year, the recovery of the PRC market and the growth of
the Australian market provided strong basis for the Group to grow in
terms of revenue. Despite the uncertain and slowly recovering global
economy, the Group intends to balance the growth with stability in
the foreseeable future.

Other revenue

During the Year, our other revenue decreased to RMB15.8 million
(2016: RMB29.3 million) mainly due to the decrease in policy
subsidies of government amounting to RMB11.4 million (2016:
RMB23.0 million).

Other net loss

The Group recorded other net loss of RMB14.9 million for the Year
(2016: RMB21.9 million). The decrease in loss were primarily due to
the exchange, gain and gain on disposal land use right and
equipment. However, the fair value loss of derivative financial
instruments has resulted in a net loss.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses incurred during the Year were
RMB17.6 million (2016: RMB20.2 million) which was a result of the
stringent cost control during the year.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses incurred during the Year increased to
RMB47.2 million (2016: RMB46.5 million), which was a result of an
increase in research and development cost.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

RARBREERS - BEBEEFORASEH TR
AN1%EANREMBAEIL(ZE ﬁE'AE%

673BBIL) NEBRAEBEELSE —SkaE
EmER 15$$f£%@4§1)\5’\]14.0%(f¥—/_\

1 152%) ° A EZHRIEFMHE TER
WHTRMTTIEMBREE -

BT hFERVEEMNBA-—BERFE
£ BOARETBESETEEARBI9TEST -
BRI EHNRAIEEMNRPETEOHEEME -

RAFE  PETSERENTISERAAE
BUWARRERTEINER - BEZREEL
THEERREER  AREFENATELRKF
g R MIBE -

=N

NEE  BAWEMBRARLEARB158EHE
T(ZEBE—RF: ARKE293FET)  TERH
RESBRFREEFEMRLEARBI1NAEET
(ZZT—RF: ARE2Z0EET)FTH -

H b &5 185 58
$%l#$¢§ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁAE%m9ﬁ
B (CF—AF219FET)  BARSE
EmmERW§&a%im&%%&mﬁwm%

B AW TAESRMITENAFESEERFEE

=D

HE NS HAS

mwﬁm%%mﬂﬁiﬁ BARAREERHE
DEETAARKI76EBIT(ZE—~F

AEM%QE%%)

TR SZ

A B R AR IE AN - AN S B PR T BB S 38

FARBAI2EBIL(ZE—RF: AR¥A65

BEL) -



Management Discussion and Analysis continea

V‘I[JH

HTIE IﬂLDHﬂ/\I} Tﬁ

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased to RMB6.2 million during the Year (2016:
RMB9.0 million), and this was attributable to the active management
to the fund.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased to RMB2.4 million (2016: RMB1.6
million), primarily due to the deferred taxation expenses recorded
during the Year.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, loss for the Year is RMB40.6
million (2016. RMB22.3 million). Loss for the Year excluding the after
tax effect of government subsidies is RMB50.1 million (2016: RMB41.8
million).

Dividend

The Board does not recommended a final dividend for the Year
(2016: Nil).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from bank
borrowings. The Group anticipates that it can sufficiently meet
funding needs for working capital and capital expenditure. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had current assets of RMB721.1 million
(31 December 2016: RMB882.5 million), of which bank deposits and
cash (including pledged deposits) were RMB191.8 million (31
December 2016: RMB321.2 million). To better manage our funds, the
Group's cash is generally deposited with banks and denominated
mostly in RMB, USD and CHF. As at 31 December 2017, total
available banking facilities of the Group amounted to RMB396.1
million (31 December 2016: RMB532.0 million), banking facilities
utilized as at 31 December 2017 were RMB233.2 million (31
December 2016: RMB396.4 million) and these were denominated in
RMB, EURO and USD. All of the Group’s banking facilities were
subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants, as are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. Details of
the covenants are set out in note 24(c) to the financial statement.
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As at 31 December 2017, the ratio of total borrowings to total assets
and net borrowings to total equity of the Group were 16.7% and 5.1%
respectively (31 December 2016: 25.5% and 7.2% respectively),
current ratio and quick ratio were 2.2:1 and 1.2:1 respectively (31
December 2016: 2.1:1 and 1.3:1 respectively).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged its plant and machinery,
lease prepayments and buildings held for own use and construction
in progress with net book value of RMB243.0 million (31 December
2016: RMB229.4 million) and deposits with banks of RMB78.3 million
(31 December 2016: RMB147.2 million) mainly for the purpose of
securing bank loans and financial derivative contracts issued by
banks to the Group.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group's total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment and non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB95.7 million
(2016: RMB8&9.2 million).

Capital commitment and contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 28(a) of the consolidated financial
statements, there were no significant capital commitments for the
Group. There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group
as at 31 December 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL
ASSETS

During the Year, there were no significant investments, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries by the Company. The Group
currently has no plan to make any substantial investments in or
acquisitions of capital assets, but will continue to seek out potential
investment or acquisition opportunities according to the Group's
development needs.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group's sales are mainly denominated in USD and RMB while
our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly denominated in
RMB. Therefore, the Group's profit margin would be affected if RMB
appreciates against USD as the Group may not be able to reflect the
appreciation in selling prices to overseas customers that were
determined in USD. In response to this, the Group manages
fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB against USD by entering
into foreign currency forward contracts mainly denominated in USD
and RMB with banks when sales contracts were entered with
overseas customers.

With the increasing level of our overseas purchases, the Group also
manages foreign exchange risk by matching the cash inflow from our
export sales denominated in USD with the cash outflow from our
import of timber denominated in USD.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net outstanding USD
denominated forward foreign currency contracts of USD31.5 million
(31 December 2016: USD37.9 million). All the contracts are to be
settled within one year.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING, PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012. Net proceeds from the global offering
were approximately HK$144.3 million (after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses).

On 26 June 2014, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.80 per share by way of placing (the
“June 2014 Placement”). On 7 October 2014, the Company issued
165,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.93 per
share by way of placing (the “October 2014 Placement”). On 5 August
2015, the Company issued 272,600,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.55 per share by way of placing (the "August
2015 Subscription”). On 21 December 2015, the Company issued
857,945,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.20 per
share by way of Open Offer (the “December 2015 Open Offer”). On
10 February 2017, the Company issued 514,500,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.13 per share by way of subscription
(the “February 2017 Subscription”). The net proceeds from the issue
of new shares under the June 2014 Placement, October 2014
Placement, August 2015 Subscription, December 2015 Open Offer,
February 2017 Subscription after deducting related transaction costs,
were HK$155.0 million, HK$148.0 million, HK$149.7 million, HK$170.0
million, HK$66.7 million respectively.
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As at 31 December 2017, all the unutilised proceeds were deposited
in licensed banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. A breakdown of the use
of net proceeds is set forth in the table below:

E/\—__

tF+-A=1+—8 " MERPAHME

RIECFEREERPEZMRT - FAEHREA

@%EZE% BEREIIEN TR :

Merger and
acquisition
The financing of small to
of the medium sized Increasing
acquisition of companies, and
automated Establishing othertimber  Own-brand  enhancing
production Establishing  own-brand  processing  promotion our research
machinery new self-operated plants,  and other and General
and  production store and/orother  marketing development working
equipment facilities network  resources events activities capital Total
AHEKE
READL RPHLT Ef
SEME Rl RtkH BER RARME
B BIN  BEEMG  MIER/  REfmE FLEM &
R ERE  REERR  GANER ERED HRED BEge 1]
HKS' million HKS' millon HKS' million HKS' millon HKS' million HKS' millon HKS' million HKS' million
BERT BERT BEER BERT BEET BE#T BEET BEAT
From global offering RA2REE
Amount of net proceeds METERE N/A ns 28 279 1.1 98 139 3
TR
Percentage to total net proceeds EFETELTEEAY N/A 29.0% 27.6% 19.3% 7.7% 68% 9.6% 100.0%
NER
Utiised amount as at RZE-+E+ZA=1-A N/A 418 38 279 1.1 98 139 143
31 December 2017 REfiER NER
Unutiised amount s at RZZ-t5+ZA=1-8 N/A - - - - - - -
31 Decermber 2017 AOALE NER
From June 2014 Placement RE-S-MERREE
Amount of net proceeds FERETR N/A 1250 /A N/A /A N/A 300 1550
~ NER TR TR TER TER
Percentage to total net proceeds (EREIEEFRRAL N/A 80.4% N/A N/A /A N/A 19.4% 100.0%
NER R TiER TR TR
Utilised amount as at e S o N/A 1250 N/A N/A N/A N/A 300 1550
31 December 2017 RO NER R TiER TR TR
Unutiised amount as at O = VA - VA WA WA WA - -
31 December 2017 AOALE NER ER TR ER TR
From October 2014 Placement RE-S-DEHRES
Amount of net proceeds HETEFE N/A 730 N/A 500 N/A N/A 250 1480
NER R R TR
Percentage to total net proceeds BEEFELEFEANY N/A 9% N/A 38% N/A N/A 16.9% 100.0%
NER NER NER TR
Utlised amount as at T-tETZA=1-8 N/A 730 /A 273 /A N/A 50 1253
31 December 2017 % 2] NER NER NER TR
Unutiised amount as at T-tETZA=T-H N/A - /A 07 /A N/A - n7
31 December 2017 Eﬁ L8 NER NER ER NER
From August 2015 Subscription FEZE-15/\BUMER
Amount of net proceeds MERESE N/A 749 N/A N/A N/A N/A 748 1497
~ NER NER TR ER TR
Percentage to total net proceeds KHBTEEFEEA L N/A 500% N/A N/A N/A N/A 500% 100%
NER R TR ER TER
Utlised amount as at RZ% tﬁJr A=t-8 N/A 749 N/A N/A N/A N/A 748 149.7
31 December 2017 E@J NER R TR ER ER
Unutlised amount as at W% tﬁ A=1-A N/A - /A N/A /A N/A - -
31 December 2017 Nk NER ER TR ER iR
From December 2015 Open Offer Y E_s-i$+_ﬂ AHRE
Amount of net proceeds fETETE 1190 N/A N/A N/A N/A 170 340 1700
~ TR R TR ER
Percentage to total net proceeds (BEETELTEEAY 700% N/A N/A N/A N/A 10.0% 200% 100%
TR NaR TiER R
Utiised amount as at T-tETZA=T-R 9.1 N/A N/A N/A /A 170 340 1461
31 December 2017 EJ L8 iR NaR TR NaR
Unutilised amount as at T—+E+Zf=+-A 239 N/A N/A N/A NA - - B9
31 December 2017 @J 2] TR ER TR ER

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Merger and
acquisition
The financing of small to
of the medium sized Increasing
acquisition of companies, and
automated Establishing other timber  Own-brand  enhancing
production Establishing  own-brand  processing  promotion our research
machinery new self-operated plants,  and other and General
and  production store and/orother  marketing development working
equipment facilities network  resources events activities capital Total
AHEKE
WERDL ROBAT Ef
EEME Rl Rtk BERM  RARNE
Rifi BIN  BEEMG  MIER/  REfmE FLEM -#
e ERE  REERR  GANES ERED HRED BEge
HKS' million HKS' millon HKS' million HKS' millon HKS' million HKS' million HKS' million HKS' million
REAT BERT REET TERT BERT BEAT BEET BEAT
From February 2017 Subscription REZS-tEZRRRER
Amount of et proceeds FRAEHE NA NA NA NA WA 70 »7 667
NER ER NER TR ER
Percentage to total net proceeds (EHERBRFER AL N/A N/A NA N/A N/A 405% 59.5% 100%
NER TR MR TR ki
Utiised amount as at RZZ—+E+ZA=1-R /A N/A /A N/A N/A A8 7 845
31 December 2017 REfiER R TR ER TR TER
Unutlised amount as at RZE-+E+ZA=1-A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 22 - 22
31 December 2017 AOALE NER ER ER TER ER
HUMAN RESOURCES ADER

As at 31 December 2017, we employed a total of 510 (2016: 547) full
time employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group's total expenses on the remuneration of
employees for the Year were RMB32.6 million (2016: RMB38.8
million), representing 7.1% (2016: 8.8%) of the revenue of the Group.
The Group has been consistently increasing production process
automation, strengthening the training of staff with an emphasis on
high-technique processing with a mission on the continuous
development and enhancing of competitiveness. The Group offered
highly competitive salary packages, as well as discretionary bonuses
and contribution to social insurance to its employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed
periodically. Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in
accordance with the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or social insurance
(including retirement pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance
for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses are also awarded to
employees and directors according to the assessment of individual
performance. Since the adoption of the share option scheme on 15
June 2012 and up to 31 December 2017, no options have been
granted.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group has no material events after the reporting period.

RZT—+tF+-A=+—0 AEERFEKR
BAHRERSI0B(ZT—RF :5478) 2RE
CEPBEEBEAS  EMEITAER - BTA
CHEABRIA -REAFE  AEEGES
FN AR BARERBET(ZE—RF
ARKEIBSEEL)  HAREERARNTA%(ZZ
— N 88%) c AEE—EHFEBIESIFAD
1t Mg B THIIAREFESHMMI - £i58
IHREERERESEIEE ) - AEEAES
REERFINGIES  UERBTEAARS
BiE 8BNS RBIERN -

=
L
=
=

R EE B ) F BB SR TR R 1B B R INMHIET -
I E Biest - RABEEF B (RERHIERE
EFFEIGPINGEXRBBRERTT) LG RE
(BfETERENEKREZRE  BERR X
R TERBRRESRR) I KEBE TS
RIBLEHNEERROFEAEES RESEBRE
TBIEAL - BEEREFER -_T——FA+hA
BEMARZ_T—F+_A=F+—HIE &
SEMER B EBRE -

WERREE
AEEY BEAREREEE -

HREMERBIRDR | 21

—E—FFR



22

Corporate Governance Report
TREAME

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board believes that a high standard of corporate
governance will provide a framework for the Company to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and manage and lower the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the Year
except for the deviations disclosed under the sections headed “The
Board” and “Accountability and Audit” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company'’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the day-
to-day management of the Company is delegated to the chief
executive officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management
team.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu Zheyan. Save and except
this, there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relevant relationship) between Board members and
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.
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The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to the information of the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings and 2016 Annual General Meeting held during the year are
set out in the following table:

ate Governance Report contined
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Meeting attendance/number of meetings
BRLEAY BERN

2016 Risk
Annual Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management
General Board  Committee  Committee ~ Committee  Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
“E-RE E¥e #itzRe FlzRE RZZAE RREEZAE
Name of Directors ESen BRaEExe L1 ] {1 ] L1 ] {1 ] | |
Executive Directors HiTEE
Ms. Xie Qingmel (Chairman) HEELL(ZE) 10 99 N/A N/A N/A N/A
TR TR TR il
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Offcer) — REZ %% (77847 01 99 N/A N/A N/A N/A
il Oyl Wyl itz
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Wu Dongping (eS8 13 01 89 N/A N/A N/A N/A
il il il il
Independent non-executive BUEHITES
Directors
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERGLE "N 99 22 22 22 22
Prof. Jin Zhongwei SEAUR 0n 99 22 22 22 22
Prof. Su Wengjang EYE:E 0N 99 22 22 22 22
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Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Board only held two regular meetings during the Year
to approve the interim results of 2017 and annual results of 2016
whilst other matters of the Board were dealt with by written
resolutions or ad hoc Board meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ms. Xie Qingmei, an executive director of the Company is the
chairman of the Board.

Mr. Wu Zheyan is the chief executive officer of the Company. Further
details are disclosed in the section headed “The Board” of this
report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors and four non-executive Directors. Three of the non-
executive Directors are independent. Further details of the
composition of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “The
Board” of this report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are expected to participate in the
activities of the Board, particularly in the establishment of a selection
process to ensure a mix of competent directors and officers;
adoption of a system of internal checks and balances; scrutiny of the
Company's performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of Board authority is within
the powers conferred to the Board under its articles of association
(the "Articles”) and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the
fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and
number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board's deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND ROTATION
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2015, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each of the non-
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2015. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

ate Governance Report contined

BYFHITES
BUFNTEFHREFEREAL  HEF ¥
% AXREHBEERZHERABNER - BF
ZEM - EEABNEETEABERETESS
BHNBILBERRAGFALCEE  MARER
RABEEFEORRERT HIREEE - ®F
ZHERZETEHESERTREETHHR
HApse Bl 2WRTE - WIRHERHABRE R T -
AREBARBBRREARBOFE o

BEUFFPTEEAARR B LB IENFE
RE - RBELETHRAEIMGAE 25 K

=

NARRBEREERHERL -

BEENABEERKAIRKAERRBAERY
ZHERAMEBLEEER  ETERRARE
MEBE - BRBAREHAE -

EENET ERRBERE

BWITESESARAQRRUREAN B =%
—RFANATHARH  BRE=F TH—FAM
S—HBEETNPDR=EANEmRAE T ALK -
FRTEERBUIIFRNTEESSENEHR T
—RFEXNATHEBR - BAH=F ERHENA
REBEFRKBRBILRBEEL - BTBRER
—FAEMATHEEER -—FRRMEECEE
BEIERRIN) FIARIER AR o

RIBAR RERRBFRE L
ZERARERE HEERES
RERBFAEG LWMERE—R -
BIEEREE -

"T 3

\\\ HD}
H> H# D

HEFH=
CE
REEEFA

PREMERERAH

B FFR

25



26

2
mf S

According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Wu
Zheyan, Mr. Wu Dongping and Prof. Su Wengiang shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management is
determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration
of non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of the Directors.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant
code provision. The Company had received from each of the
Directors the record of training the Directors received.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all
the Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the risk management committee (collectively the “Board
Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist the
Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked
with recommending to the Board appropriate actions emanating
from such investigations. The Audit Committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk
assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

by:

making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services,

reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company’s financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems,

reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management'’s response to such
queries; and

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external

legal

or other independent professional advice and to secure the

attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Ccommittee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company to
discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of
reference are available on request to any shareholder of the
Company and are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management
has reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the Group’s internal control
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2017, with recommendation to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to
the Board that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, BDO Limited be re-appointed as the external
auditors of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e) to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(fy  to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

@

—
>
=

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the
same to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.
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Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will
carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
candidates for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough time
in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under review the
leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace. The
Nomination Committee has also adopted the following diversity
policy on the Board:

We embrace and encourage our employees’ differences in age,
color, disability, ethnicity, family or marital status, gender identity or
expression, language, national origin, physical and mental ability,
political affiliation, race, religion, sexual orientation, socio-economic
status, veteran status, and other characteristics that make our
directors unique.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.
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The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

@)

to review the Group risk, capital and liquidity management
framework, the Group's risk appetite, its risk policies and
standards, and supporting risk limits, including the parameters
used and the methodology adopted, and the processes used
for identifying and assessing risks;

to review material risk exposures of the Group, including
market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity, and economic
and regulatory capital risks against the Group’s risk
measurement methodologies and management actions to
monitor and control such exposures,

to review the standard for accurate and timely monitoring of
large exposures and certain risk types of critical importance,
and the Group's capability to identify and manage new risk
types,

to receive reports and recommendations from management
on the Group's attitude to and tolerance of risk, including
financial and non-financial risks;

to oversee the Group's processes and policies for determining
risk tolerance and review management’s measurement and
effectiveness of, and compliance with, approved Group risk
tolerance levels and policies and standards, and the resultant
action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the risks inherent in strategic transactions and
business plans and provide the Board with input on the risk/
reward trade offs implicit within those plans; and

to review the Group's capability to identify and manage new
risk types, and the Group’s stress tests to ensure they are
rigorous and the Group responds adequately to the results.

The Risk Management Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated and
assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of the Terms of Reference
of the Risk Management Committee.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these
financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 81 to 88.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Pursuant to Code provision C.1.2, the Management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has deviated from C.1.2 in that while the management
has updated most of the Directors on a monthly basis about the
business operation and performance of the Company, not all the
Directors received such updates as the monthly updates were
conducted on-site at the Group’s factory in China. Members of the
Board who did not attend such on-site meetings did not receive the
updates. However, the management would provide detailed updates
to all the Directors on a half-yearly and yearly basis. In the event
there are any significant updates to be provided, the management
will update all the Directors as early as practicable for discussion and
resolution. The Company also has in place a system for every
Director to make enquiries with the senior management about the
business operation of the Group and to give suggestions or feedback
in the event such Director is not able attend the monthly on-site
updates session.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year letter from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the
scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of the independent auditor.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for audit services for the Year were approximately
HK$1,260,000.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for non-audit services for the Year were nil.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Yu Hok Sum, is a full-
time employee of the Group. According to rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Yu Hok Sum has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the Year. Please refer to his biographical
details as set out on page 80 of this annual report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the
memorandum of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the Code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group. The
systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Contact Person: Mr. Yu Hok Sum, Company Secretary
Tel: (852) 3904 1867
Postal Address: Unit 1610, The Metropolis Tower,
10 Metropolis Drive, Hunghom, Hong Kong

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the company secretary of the Company at the
Company'’s principal place of business stated above.

ate Governance Report contined
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, stock code: 1237) is pleased to present the
Environmental, Social, and Governance (the “ESG") report (the
“Report”) of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group” or “We"), the purposes of which are to present to the
stakeholders the Group’s ESG system development and performance
during 2017.

The Report discloses the ESG work and performance of the Group
during 2017. All revenue of the Group is derived from our operations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or “China”). The Report
covers our four major business operations in Mainland China,
namely, manufacturing and sales of wooden products, retail
business, projects relating to outdoor wooden products and
manufacture and sales of renewable energy products. For details of
our business, please refer to the Management Discussion and
Analysis.

REPORTING STANDARD

The preparation of the Report is in strict compliance with the
requirements under Appendix 27: Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “"ESG Guide”) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

In accordance with the requirements of the ESG Guide, the Group is
engaged in stakeholder activities by engaging internal and external
stakeholders in the materiality assessment of ESG issues, and
determines the disclosure scope to be covered in the Report by
taking into consideration concerns raised by the stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability of
the Group. We recognizes the mechanism for ongoing
communications established with the stakeholders by building online
and offline communications channels, as well as providing the
stakeholders with timely reports on the strategic planning and
performance regarding sustainability of the Group. In addition, we
consult all stakeholders on their recommendations and propositions
to ensure our business practices to meet the expectations of the
stakeholders.
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Our stakeholders include the Board, employees, government/
regulatory authorities, customers, suppliers, communities,
shareholders/institutions and individual investors, media and non-
governmental organizations. We will engage in discussions with the
stakeholders about the relevant issues through various channels. Set
out below are communications channels between the stakeholders
and the Group, as well as the expectations and demands of our
stakeholders:

SENERANEEEESS BT BA®
EWE B fUER - LR BRREERE
AZEE - BREFBFAR - ZASHEER
NEBTRAREEESE NEITER - RARR
SEMBRARENMES A AREEMNHBEIR
LN

Stakeholder Engagement Channel Expectation And Demand
BEA SHMERE B EER
The Board Regular board meetings Compliant operations
EoE THETEEEEH GHKE
Daily communications and reports Financial results
HEEBRER p e
Corporate sustainability
TEAFERR
Employees Training activities Career development
BT HIES BEERE
Team building activities Health and safety
B2 E feEEe e
Regular performance assessment Remuneration and benefits
TE BRI E % e 2R 4E
Staff meetings Equal opportunities
BT KE TEHe
Daily communications and reporting
HEEBRER

PRENRRERAT | 37
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Stakeholder
EBaA

Engagement Channel
2HEE

Expectation And Demand
RSB =R

Government/regulatory
authorities
BT, BB S

Ccustomers

5P

Suppliers
HIER

Daily communications and reporting

H & 83 HE R

Compliant management

BRER

Fulfillment of taxation obligations

FEATL

Disclosure of information

5 B 5E

Written communications,
wherever appropriate

ERERUERFER

Customer activities

Y= )

Satisfaction questionnaire
MEERE

Telephone and face-to-face meetings
BREREEEE

Meetings

EE

On-site inspection

EMER

Regular assessment

T BAET A

Exchanges and mutual visits
ZmE
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Implementation of policies

BEENTT

Compliance with rules and laws
BaesHk

Tax payment as required by law
LT

Business ethics

REE

Community engagement

\XF

@2

E

Customer information and privacy
protection

EPEERILERE

Business integrity and ethics

BEBEMER

Fair competition
NFHRE
Business ethics and reputation

SESERIEI S

Product quahty

EmEE

Cooperation with mutual benefits
ME/ N
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Stakeholder Engagement Channel Expectation And Demand
BaEA 2HEE RSB =R
community Promoting employment Compliant operations
v fRHERLZE G
Community activities Promoting community development
HIEEE fEEM [ B R
Investments and donations Environmental protection
KAHEE IRRIRE

Shareholders/institutions and
individual investors
BRI R EARE S

Media
s

Annual general meeting and notices

REBFARE RBH
Regular corporate publications (including
financial statements)
EHOR BT (BIEMBHREK)
Circulars and announcements,

wherever necessary
REREHBREAS
Corporate website
NGIFERR

Corporate website

NGEIFERR

Circulars and announcements
BHEEAE

Non-governmental organization Corporate website

TR AR AR

NGIEED
Circulars and announcements

Compliant operations

BREE

Financial results

RS
Corporate sustainability

ERAFEER

Compliant operations

EHKEE

Promoting community development
fREAt [ B R

Environmental protection

RIBRE

Business ethics

[HESEEE

Health and safety

feERL e

Promoting community development
fREAL [ B R

Environmental protection

IRIGIRE

Health and safety

EEEZ S

RRHEMIZERER A H
I S
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Identification of issues: with reference to the disclosable scope as
required under the ESG Guide, as well as taking into consideration
the corporate business characteristics, we identified and determined
26 issues, which cover environmental and employment practices,
occupational health and safety, labour standards, supply chain
management, product responsibility, anti-corruption, and community
investments.

Assessment of issues: through various engagement channels, we
engaged internal and external stakeholders in rating the materiality
with respect to the 26 issues, as well as determining the materiality
orders of 26 issues.

Selection of material issues: by analyzing materiality rating, as well
as considering the key business developments and industrial
disclosure, the Group summarized the key materiality issues in the
Report, and created the matrix of materiality issues (see Figure 1 for
details).

Materiality to
stakeholders
RS A
521

EEMBETML

FREwl c 2EC(RE LB RERREESDR
ERRBEHE A AEEEBTR B
ET20HEE - mBRERE BRESR  BXE
EEze HSTER HEFEE ERE
- RESKHEREES @ -

A BATRFANSERE  BFEAIN
S A 26 HEBEHENERREETH S -
HEMAET 26 HRENEZ I DBEF -

SEZEUZERR BROIMEZEUTS  HaeE
BEEXEBEREMRITEREBR - £&FD
RIMENERRERE PR EENREEE(FF
SE1) -

Materiality to corporate business development
HAEEEBERNEEN
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Item Description
HE fifi 5t
14 Employee development and training
1 Exhaust emission B T 3R NIEY
BERBEN 15 Prevention of child or forced labour
2 Greenhouse gas emission PrlEZE Tokeahlss T
BE R BEHER 16 Supply chain management
3 Harmful waste disposal HENREER
BEEEVERRE 17 Suppliers’ environmental issues
4 General waste disposal HEFRRENR
—REEYRE 18 Suppliers’ Iabour issues
5 Waste sewage treatment HEmLS IIE)
SEKER IR Health and safety related to
6 Recycle and use of waste 19 products
[EE Y 1= Y B 1) AR EmNEREREZE
7 Power consumption 20 Advertising and labeling of products
BEIREA EmiES REH
8 Water consumption 21 Customer information and privacy
KE IR BEPHER KILE
9 Use of packaging materials 22 Customer satisfaction
BEMEHE A EPHREE
10 Impacts on environmental and natural resources 23 Product quality inspection
HIRBE R RARERNTE EmEERTE
11 Employee remuneration and benefits Prevention of bribery, blackmail,
B ITH MRS REA 24 fraud and money laundering
12 Employee composition P7IEBRER - #1R - MFFRIERE
1E B R9ZERK Anti-corruption and whistleblower
13 Occupational health and safety 25 policy
BEEEkLD B E TR
26 Community investment
HEZRE
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In addition to compliance with the ESG Guide, we will include more
details regarding the issues to which the stakeholders pay greater
attention in the Report. Meanwhile, the materiality assessment
results will provide the Group with guidance on formulating strategic
objectives and plans to resolve the ESG issues for the coming year,
as well as on continuing to push forward its sustainability
development.

In 2018, to better understand the issues concerning the stakeholders,
as well as further enhancing the substantiality and relevance of the
Report, we will maintain close communications with the
stakeholders, and, wherever necessary, gradually expand our
guestionnaire scope and the number of participants.

1. Environment
(A1) Emission management

In addition to introducing the 1SO14001 environmental
management system in July 2014, the Group has always
implemented the “sound system, cherish resources, treat
the earth well, and sustainable development” policy,
while observing environmental laws and regulations of
the nation and industry as well as industry standards,
norms and local regulations. In addition, the Group sets
up the control procedures for identification and
evaluation of environmental factors to identify the
exhaust gas emissions, pollutants discharged into water,
soil pollutants, solid waste, and other pollutants.
Furthermore, the Group formulates and strictly executes
the energy management regulations, waste control
procedures, and hazardous waste management systems
to monitor the emission of various exhaust gas,
greenhouse gas and waste water, as well as generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, which are in
compliance with the Integrated Emission Standard of Air
pollutants, the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for
Boilers, the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard,
the Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste
Storage, the Hazardous Chemicals Management
Regulations and the Precursor Chemicals Management
Regulations of the People’s Republic of China and other
national standards.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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During the year, the Group slightly exceeded the noise RAFEA - AEEBRAREENY
emission standard for its machinery, and had paid the BHEE - KEB B &R E BT SR
fees to the local government authorities for the portion PIZMRBLIZENER o BRULLAS -
that exceeded the standard. Except that, the Group had RERETTREHBEREER
complied with all relevant laws and regulations relating BEHERR - MK R EHMEES c BEK
to air and greenhouse gas emission, discharges into BEBEEVRERESR -

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

Exhaust gas emissions

The Group’s production line is located in Zhangping,
Fujian Province, which generates sawdust during
the wood cutting process and may require
adjustments to the humidity of materials used for
boilers. This may discharge exhaust gases,
including nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxides and
particle matters. As our customers come to
transport cargoes by themselves or appointing a

FERBER

REBEERRNEBEREET
W AEBRERIEAHEE
EEFER BRERGURE
REMHERE - TEERE
meERE/lY - —|mAa
R - ARBEARIRETT
RENEXE=FLHEH
AEENERIUEEZRSE

third-party transportation company at our factory DeEsLaEk  FTEMHE
premises, our vehicles are only reserved for RO RESENT
transportation purposes and generate a small

amount of emissions. Set forth below are our major

emissions and statistics:

Type of emission Amount (tonnes)
HmmER B E ()
Nitrogen oxides @&t ¥ 3.6
Sulfur dioxide =&/t B 45
Particulate matter EE7 ¥y 7.6
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Greenhouse gas emission ji.

Besides greenhouse gas directly emitted from
burning fuels inside boilers, the machinery and

i EREEBE I
BTHRERERHEERES
BEREIN - MBI IRRE

equipment at the plants indirectly generate FRENRTEHEEERE
greenhouse gas emissions for their power RES o RAEEBBEI  1THE
consumption. Apart from the production process, BERAfBSEEAERE - £
paper used for administrative purposes may also BERBEEREBOT
generate greenhouse gas emissions. Set forth
below is the statistics of major greenhouse gas
emissions:
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Amount
mEREREN B E
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (tCO-€) (such as combustion from burning

wood trim and saw dust)
BEHN(EE—) (M _fbiRE2) (RERER RIFER) 5,238
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (tCO,e) (such as purchase of electricity)
MEER(BED)(B_atmE2)(WBEEN) 6,005
Indirect emissions (Scope 3) (tCO.e) (such as consumption of paper)
MEEN (BE=) (8 RES) WERER) 17
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) (tCO.€e)
RERBHENEE (HE— k=) (BE-_atREE) 11,260
Total GHG emissions intensity (tonnes/ms? of products)
BERBHNBERE W HKEMR) 0.14

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017



Environmental, Social and Governance Report wonined
B HEREARE

fi.

Hazardous waste

Waste paint buckets, waste wood chips used to
absorb waste paint during the spray process and
other hazardous waste come from our production
processes. Set forth below is the total amount of
hazardous waste:

fii.

BZEEY
EEBEELERRR  HE
T BT NP BE 2 2 B A BE K
BEEBREY EEBREVR
B

Total hazardous waste produced Amount
EERTEREVHEE HHE
Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)

EXEEEEYRE (HE) 0.5
Total hazardous waste produced intensity (tonnes/ms? of products)

EEAEEEMBERE (W, ST HKER) 0.001
General waste . EEZEEY

Scraps and sawdust generated from the wood AMMIBEEREENEA

processing process, after being collected, will be
used as boiler fuel and to produce biomass energy,
and thus no waste is generated. In addition, boiler
slags, precipitator dust and liquid residue of dust
removal, after being collected, are used as modified
soil fertilizer for resales, and thus no waste is
generated either. Non-hazardous waste only comes
from domestic waste, which is mainly comprised of
paper used for administrative purposes. Set forth
below is the total amount of non-hazardous waste:

B ABERERIERESR
FA &SRB A R B R M e
R R EBEERMESL -
IENEE - FRER K FREKINE
WERRIERR TIRARFIN
B REERMEL - BEF
BEEMBMABERAE - X
BRTBEETRME - BEERE
BEMEEWT

Total non-hazardous waste produced Amount
EERETHEEDEE B E
Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes)

ErmEEEyES () 35
Total non-hazardous waste produced intensity (tonnes/m?3 of products)

EEEEEENEETE (W LT KRER) 0.001
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Measure to mitigate emissions

In line with the concept of energy conservation, the
Group has been actively committed to the
integrated transformation of energy-saving system,
to promote low-carbon recycle and pollution
reduction in environmental protection facilities.
Scraps and sawdust generated from the wood
processing process, after being collected, will be
used as boiler fuel and to produce biomass energy;
after the operation of the biomass wood pellet fuel
production line with an annual output of 50,000
tons, wood residue and other wastes generated
from the wood processing will be made full use of
to make wood pellet fuel, making an integrated
utilization rate of 99%. The total production and
sales of biomass wood particles amounted to
27,295 tons (2016: 14,639 tons) and 27,295 tons
(2016: 14,652 tons), respectively in 2017, 86% and
86% increase over last year. Biomass pellet fuel,
which does not contain sulfur phosphorus, will not
corrode the boiler and can extend the service life
of the boiler, from which the enterprise will benefit.
It will neither lead to acid rain, nor will it pollute the
atmosphere or the environment.

The Group selects comparatively premier wood as
raw materials to reduce the use of boilers to adjust
the humidity of materials, thus minimizing exhaust
gas emissions. During the year, the Group reduced
exhaust gas emissions and greenhouse gas
emissions by more than 40% and 4%, respectively.
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Hazardous and non-hazardous wastes treatment
methods

The chemical containers are kept by the Group in
accordance with the supplier agreement and are
regularly recycled by the suppliers for reuse to
reduce waste.

Waste paint bucket and spray section for the
adsorption of waste wood chips of waste paint and
other hazardous wastes, shall not be mixed with
other solid wastes, and must be stored in
hazardous wastes reservoir pool constructed
strictly in accordance with the relevant
requirements under the “Pollution Control
Standards for Hazardous Wastes Storage”
GB18597-2001. The disposal, collection, temporary
storage and management of hazardous solid wastes
should be implemented according to relevant
provisions of “Hazardous Chemicals Management
Regulations” and “Precursor Chemicals
Management Regulations”. The “Hazardous Waste
Management System” should be formulated and all
such hazardous wastes should be entrusted to
qualified third parties for disposal.

During the Year, 477.6kg of hazardous waste was
disposed of, which is 9% less than last year.

Vi

BEREZERYBIET %

tEmBRIREEE R -
EBEREFRS:  TRHHER
@H&Eﬁﬁ ! /EX//EE °

BEHR - 2 TR AR R
BEZHNEABEEEEE
) 15 B H b [E] B8 BE DR AR
BEBRERLRBERENRETS
Fe 47 I 4Z 2% ) GB18597-2001 B
BHRT ZREREDET
B EREFENEE - WE-
EFmRERRERICERE
BEH) (SRS BRER
BB BRI E T - 5]
(ERENERGE)  EE
NEEEEVNETEERNE
=TT

AEERENEERENR
477.6 AT EEEFRD 9% °
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All departments and employees that generate solid
wastes should take measures to collect and store
solid wastes, and each department carries out a
clear identification of the container or designated
location used to collect solid waste. Recyclable
solid wastes should be classified for centralized
storage and recycling upon reaching a certain
amount. Daily non-recyclable production and
household garbage should be collected by the
qualified contractor for processing. The harmless
wastes generated mainly include waste paper,
such as office paper and marketing materials. In
order to reduce the impact on the carbon footprint
and the environment, the Group has implemented
the following actions to enhance the use of paper:

set most of the network printers to double-
sided printing mode;

. remind employees to take wise measures
when photocopying;

. encourage employees to use both sides of
the paper;

. separate paper from other waste for
recycling; and

. place a cardboard box and paper tray next to
the copier to collect single-sided paper for
recycling.

The Group's implementation of conservation
initiatives has reduced paper consumption.
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(A2) Resources consumption (A2) ERFEHR

The Group formulates the energy management
regulations, which regulate and control in-house water
and power consumption level for the purposes of
reducing waste and conserving water and power. Our
human resources and administrative center is generally
responsible for promoting the awareness of water and
power conservation, as well as conducting regular
inspections over water and power conservation at
various departments. All principals in charge of various
departments are responsible for promoting, supervising,
and inspecting water and power conservation by our
employees. The major departments that consume water
and power-driven equipment shall be responsible for
repairing and maintaining the equipment.

The Group provides waste knowledge to the public
through bulletin board, corporate communications and
dispatches the same to our staff to raise the environment
protection consciousness, to effectively control and
reduce the generation of harmful and hazardous wastes.
Through a series of control measures, the Group’s
environmental protection work was highly recognized by
environmental protection, forestry and other relevant
departments.

The major raw material of the Group is wood. The policies
on the efficient use of wood stated under section A1 part
vV "measure to mitigate emissions” of this report.

I. Energy consumption management

Our processing technigue mainly consumes
electricity, and few other forms of energy are used.
Set forth below is the statistics about power
consumption:

Energy consumption

REBTZAERERSRTE - HAEH
K BEITHBEE  RDRE
MRAKAE - ASTTBRPLEEAER
AKX AENEREE TR
BEXAFIFBAOMRK BERATHOE
e BEFIETERREAMBTENL
K- AENER  BfelRE -
ZRKAEREBEAMAIBEELAR
R RRE -

AEEBASEW  ARBAKRAE
ITHEXEFANIREEEEZEDA
#o ERIRRERETE - /ERIEH
WRPEEREEEERMHNESE -
BB —RIWE RS - SEARER
THEBUERR  MESHEBMNG

a8

AEBTZWEMBRAN - BHEA
RUE AR B R A A 5 HO 58 AT
ERERVER D DRVE B E RO FE B PR

i BER(E FH & HE
MIBRETEBFEREN D
FREMEENR - FRE B
BT

Usage
EHE

Power (kwh in '000)

BN (FFREE)

Power intensity (kwh/m? of products)
EXBEZEEVRETE (TERN Y HKER)

10,891
131
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Water consumption management

The Group's use of water resources mainly
comprise water used for boiler and domestic
purposes. With respect to boiler water, the boiler
steam condensate recovery system not only saves
fuels, but also effectively improves the recycle level
of reusable water. We do not heavily rely on
demand for water resources, and domestic water
consumption also has a limited impact on the
Group. As such, we are unable to provide concrete
data on water consumption.

Efficient Energy Initiatives

In accordance with the energy management
regulations of the Group, lighting equipment, if
deemed as unnecessary for long-term operation,
shall be turned off when no employee is around. In
addition, energy-saving lighting fixtures will be
introduced gradually. Our air-conditioning
equipment will only be turned on when the
temperature reaches more than 28 Celsius degrees
during summer with an air-conditioning
temperature not lower than 28 Celsius degrees.
During winter, only when the room temperature
falls below 15 Celsius degrees, the air-conditioning
equipment will be turned on with a room
temperature no higher than 22 Celsius degrees.
The air-conditioning equipment will be turned off
by 09:00 p.m., and it will not be running if the
overtime is less than three hours. Regular
inspection will be conducted for our production
equipment to minimize energy consumption. When
our production ceases, all production equipment
must be turned off to prevent excessive power
consumption.

During the year, each production unit saved 8% of
power consumption.
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iv.  Water Efficiency Initiatives . AN EE
The Group has no issue in sourcing water that is fit for REBEKEUERAE F8a
purpose. To further save and recycle of water (FARI5E - A — £ 54 FE
resources, the Group actively advocated group BRI EKERE  AEEEGS
employees to establish the concept of water MEEE T Y EHEKNE
conservation. Regarding the domestic sewage 2o EEEEKER A - A
treatment, the Group has built a domestic sewage EEEEETERKERLS
treatment system, and treated domestic sewage can BB 14 H A SE S oK AT AE HE
be discharged after reaching the standard for B BAREMER. SREF
discharge for irrigation. In addition, a large number of L HIRA - ABhZEAS
slogans relating to water conservation have been EREN S EAKIES - Bk
posted on wash basins, commodes and kitchen sinks ) T AEAKE] -
to fulfilling “turning off the faucet while leaving”.
The Group’s implementation of conservation REEBRSFOERS AKE
initiatives has reduced water consumption. B e
V.  Management of use of packaging materials v. BRMEHEREE
The Group’s major products include leisure AEEMNTIEERERERE
household products and timber houses and their Aok AREREABISE - =
related parts. The major packaging materials are EREMHEREH B#EK
Poly velvet, cartons and plastic materials. Without BREYE  c AREETHEH
affecting sales, the Group actively reduce ENERAT BERSERE
secondary pollution caused by excessive use of RBZHaREYmER = X5
packaging. Total packaging materials used are as o FABEMHNERZN
follows: e
Total packaging materials used BRYENRHAE
2017
—2—t%
Other
Poly Plastic packaging Woven
velvet Carton bags materials bags
FRER 8 BHs Httakh RS
(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes)
(&) (W5) (W) (W) ()
Timber houses and their related — AZ K E BSR4 M &+
parts and structures 9.9 94.9 5.2 82.1 -
Outdoor and indoor furniture ENIMREER 0.5 4.5 0.2 3.5 -
Recreational products EEEER 0.7 4.7 0.2 2.8 -
Landscape garden products BEHEER 3.9 28.6 1.5 19.1 -
Pet-home designs products EMEER 1.1 8.2 0.4 5.8 -
Renewable energy products BHERERER - - - - 32.7
FRAEYERAERAT

TE—FFER
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Per unit produced (tonnes/m3, unless stated
otherwise) are as follows:
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FEESUNE(M 81H
Ko BRERRINIAT

in 2017 and is expected to maintain the amount of
packaging material per unit produced.

(A3) care for matters on environmental and natural

resources

The Group mainly produces wooden products. Our
stringent selecting process for wood sources will help
minimize impacts on the environment and natural
resources. Wood used by the Group for our products are
provided by qualified suppliers along with the compliance
certification, which shall be certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC) and The Programme for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification. This will safeguard
the legitimate and sustainable sources of wood without
sacrificing forest resources, or damaging the ecosystem
or affecting the communities. The Group is committed to
promoting environmental protection, reducing waste of
resources, and fully utilizing wood by recycling and
processing scraps and sawdust generated from our
production processes into wood-based fuels.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

2017
—t&

Woven

Other bags

Poly Plastic packaging (tonnes/
velvet Carton bags materials tonnes)

REs

REM g ) BEs HttaRh ()

Timber houses and their related A/ [ KL AE R 3B S {4
parts and structures 0.00016 0.00156 0.00009 0.00135 =
Outdoor and indoor furniture ERIMREED 0.00021  0.00175  0.00009  0.00137 =
Recreational products EERBEER 0.00035 0.00239 0.00012  0.00145 -
Landscape garden products BEBMEER 0.00029 0.00211  0.00011  0.00142 -
Pet-home designs products EVERER 0.00026 0.00198  0.00011 0.00140 -
Renewable energy products BHERERER = - - - 0.00120
‘The Group successfully reduced per unit produced REEE2017 TR &

EEMI5E - 20185 F TT—\—JLA
REBEYHHELEEREME

=
= -°

(A3) BERBRAREREE
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B. Society

The Group’s business contacts with global shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers, business partners and local
communities were based on the responsibility to the
community. The Group has formulated policies and practices
on a range of topics such as human rights, anti-discrimination
and social responsibility, demonstrating its commitment to
social responsibility.

(B1) Human Resources

The Group has developed a comprehensive and well-
established human resources management system,
which clearly stipulates our requirements and operational
norms on interviews, evaluation, background checks and
admission notice in the recruitment process of staff. With
respect to the training, there are not only trainings on
pre-job corporate systems and on-job requirements, but
also special trainings for on-job management skills
improvement and business skills enhancement.

The Group attracted many talented people to serve the
Group with its perfect remuneration and a lucrative and
flexible welfare system. All employees of the Group have
more than two promotion or salary promotion
opportunities each year by virtue of their monthly
assessment results. In addition, all managers can receive
more than 2 times the year-end bonus by virtue of the
annual assessment results. In addition, the Group
provided house purchase subsidy, car subsidies, oil
subsidies, phone subsidies and subsidies for meals for
excellent management and technical staff, and more
than 85% of the management staff are enjoying this
treatment.

It is the Group’s norms and targeted talents development
policy of “selection, cultivation and retention” that
attracted many outstanding people to serve the Group
and cultivated a large number of splendid talents and
leadership.

e
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During the Year, the Group complied with all relevant
labor laws and regulations in relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees with a
healthy and safe working environment and protecting the
social environment. The Group has always put our
employee’s occupational health and safety and
environmental protection in the first place, and firmly
believe that the excellent environment, health and safety
performance will bring sustainable growth for the Group.
We have set following goals:

1. to create a healthy and safe working environment
and further control the occurrence of occupational
hazards,

2. all exhaust, sewage and waste residues meet
respective standard of discharge.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of
work environment of the staff and the social
environment. In respect to providing employees with a
healthy and safe environment, the Group has developed
a sound quality/environment/occupational health and
safety management manual in accordance with GB/
T19001-2016/1S09001: 2015, GB/T24001-2016/1SO14001:
2015 and GB/T28001-2011/0HSAS18001: 2007 standards,
including issuing compliance labor insurance products on
a monthly basis and requiring relevant personnel to wear
the specified respirators, earplugs, goggles and other
protection supplies with reference to relevant laws and
regulations. In addition, the Group has launched
corresponding reward and punishment mechanism, and
established supervision branch to check and supervise.
The company also invested in the construction of the
central dust removal system, to avoid the secondary
pollution and noise pollution caused by the dust, creating
the cleanest operating environment.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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In order to maintain the air quality of the workplace and
safeguard the health of employees, all the central
processing plants of the Group are equipped with a
central dust removal system to effectively reduce dust
concentration, noise level and exhaust emission.
Establishing closed spray device has protected staff from
exposing to exhaust and ensure the safety of the working
environment.

The Group has actively taken the following measures to
ensure the occupational health and safety of employees:

to provide staff with a seven-day pre-job safety
training and on-job special safety production
operations training from time to time;

to organize the corporate compulsory fire brigade
to purchase professional fire emergency rescue
facilities, including fire engines, automatic sprinkler
systems, automatic alarm system and other fire
facilities and equipment; to hold fire evacuation
exercises twice a year to provide all employees
safety awareness and conduct monthly fire training
targeted to key fire positions,;

to supervise and urge staff to wear protective
equipment as required;

to use prevention and anti-occupational injury
device in the production process: by using active
protective devices, fixed protective device or a
variety of protective devices;

to strengthen troubleshooting, implementation and
rectification of production safety accident, fulfilling
corporate obligations to protect employees’ health
and safety;

to arrange shuttle bus for staff and purchase
accident insurance to ensure the traffic safety of
staff;
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7. to stick eye-catching reflective stripe on overalls to
ensure the traffic safety at night;

8.  staff canteens designate main ingredients brand or
suppliers and conduct assessment and acceptance
on suppliers on a regular basis;

9. Employees are offered free physical examination per
year and commissioned third parties for the issuance
of a Review (Test) Report for the Status of Occupational
Disease Hazard ((BEmEFRAMTERAI®E)), all
of which comply with the Architectural Lighting Design
Standards (GB50034-2013), Occupational Exposure
Limits for Hazardous Agents in the Workplace Part 1:
Physical agents (GBZ2.1-2007) and Occupational
Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the Workplace
Part 2: Physical Agents (GBZ 2.2-2007).

During the Year, the Group complied with all relevant
labor laws and regulations in providing a healthy and safe
working environment for its employees. No cases of
occupational hazards were reported during fiscal year
2017.

Development and training

To enable all our employees to further enhance their
management skills and expertise, the Group has
conducted and organized various types of training
activities targeted to production technical.

The Group has also organized targeted business skills
training based on the actual job requirements, such as
the IP management system training, Fsc management
system training, occupational health management
system-internal auditor training and national forestry
standardization training, enabling the staff to give full
play effect.
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Labour standard

The Group complies with and also requires its suppliers
to comply with the guiding principles of ILO Declaration
on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work and the
United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights, which include freedom of association,
collective bargaining, the elimination of the use of child
labor, the abolition of all types of forced or compelled
labor or workplace discrimination and other relevant
principles. During the Year, the Group abided by national
labour laws and regulations including but not limited to
the prohibition of employment of child and forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

In the selection of suppliers, the Group shall, after
checking the relevant qualifications, conduct a on-spot
inspection and divide the suppliers into three classes,
namely: A-class, B-class and C-class three classes
according to their production scale, production capacity,
production environment, staffing, safety management
organization, quality control system and other indicators.
Purchasing department regularly organizes the
production department, the department of administration
and other relevant departments to conduct an integrated
assessment on the safety management and performance
and product after-sales service of qualified suppliers to
choose the fittest ones. For a small number of suppliers
with high security requirements, dedicated staff can be
arranged to conduct on-site assessment if necessary.
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(B6) Product Responsibility

To ensure that customers are offered with the highest
quality products, the Group has developed a set of strict
quality control system, covering supplier selection,
material testing, production process control, product
factory inspection, third-party inspection and
certification, after-sales service, product quality tracking
and other processes. The management system of
“survival with records, flow traceability, information
accessibility and quality retroactivity”, the quality
inspection mechanism of first inspection, self-inspection,
line inspection, cross inspection and final inspection, the
abnormal reporting and correction system and the
regular quality analysis mechanism for export products
have been set up and implemented. Publicity and
promotion meetings, training sessions, site-meetings and
seminars were organized on a regular basis to organize
staff to learn relevant laws, regulations and rules, building
the concept that “quality is the life of a company, who is
the first responsible person for the quality”, and
developing a professional team responsible for quality
management through strict product quality training
assessment, thereby enhancing our staff’'s main
responsibilities for quality and safety and quality control
awareness.

The Group conducts annual satisfaction surveys on key
client, focusing on the satisfaction of new customers and
customers with large purchases.
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Products are made from woods which are from all over
the world and certified by the FSC and PEFC forest
management systems. Both are provided by qualified
suppliers and should be accompanied by a certificate
issued by the supplier and require a sample inspection
record for traceability. Such materials should be sent to
CNAS approved laboratory at least once a year to test
the content of heavy metals (such as lead, cadmium,
mercury and chromium), free formaldehyde and other
toxic and hazardous substances. All the wood used for
the production have accepted epidemic prevention
treatment and each batch of finished product subject to
approval by the quality control department, while
samples selected at random should be sent to the
inspection room for testing before delivery.

In 2017, the Group was awarded certificate of "Excellent
Enterprise in Fujian Furniture Industry in 2017" by Fujian
Furniture Association and certificate of “National Green
Wood Model Enterprise” by Timber Conservation
Development Center. The Group was also a “National
Standardized Model Enterprise of the Forestry Industry”
during the Period, indicating external recognition of the
Group's products and production.

During the Year, the Group complied with all relevant
laws and regulations relating to health and safety,
advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
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(B7) Anti-corruption

(B8)

The Group has been committed to establishing and
continuing to improve the internal control system to
prevent corruption and fraud. The Group's audit
committee and management must not tolerate
corruption and fraud. Honesty, impartiality, transparency
and accountability are all reflected in the Group’s policies
and operating procedures.

In conclusion, the Group's firm stance on anti-corruption
and fraud is an important part of the overall corporate
governance and fully protects our shareholders’ assets
and interests.

During the Year, the Group complied with all relevant
laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering and no incidents of corruption
were identified.

Contribution to the community

The Group has been actively participating in the charity
and social welfare undertakings. The Group endowed
RMB300,000 per year since the establishment of the
“King Wood Education Fund” in Zhangping Charity
Federation in 2008. The “King Wood Education Fund” is a
social welfare undertaking which was established to fund
schools to build teaching facilities and donating piano,
computer and other teaching equipment, supporting
underdeveloped countryside for road construction over
the years. The Group also makes donations to affected
areas suffered from disasters.

In 2017, the Group donated a total of RMB374,000 (2016:
RMB833,000).
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and its outlook are set out in
the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis. Certain financial key performance indicators are
provided in the section of Financial Summary. The Group has no
material important event affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of the Year.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ") for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of
Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety for the interest of employees of the Group.

The Group respects the environment and is committed to minimizing
its carbon footprint as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon
footprint is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect
emissions of Green House Gases (GHGS) expressed in terms of the
equivalent amount of Carbon Dioxide of (CO,) emission. Non-
hazardous wastes produced from the Group mainly consist of used
paper such as office papers and marketing materials. To minimize
the impact on carbon footprint and the environment, the Group
implements the following practices to use paper efficiently:

. Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers,

o Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;,
. Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;
o Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

. Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.
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Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial
building uses more energy for lighting than for other electric
equipment. The Group is determined to reduce energy consumption
and implement conservation practices to reduce the effect of carbon
footprint. Air conditioning and light zone arrangements reduce
unnecessary electricity usage; employees enforce good practices in
maintenance of lighting and electric equipment to ensure they are
kept in good and proper condition to maximize efficiency.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets
as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.
As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied with all related laws and regulations in all material aspects
which may have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts
of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group.
While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realizes that such operational dependency may pose a
threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service
including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary
losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only
reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their
performance.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents occurred
during the Year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. The
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of market research to
understand customer trends and needs and regular analyze on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 89. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 93.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 7 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 27(b) to the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB670,527,000 (2016: RMB670,814,000), of which nil (2016: Nil) has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 11
to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND DEBENTURES

Details of the Group’s bank loans and debentures are set out in
notes 24 and 26 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group'’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 43.4% (2016: 49.1%) of the Group’s total revenue and
the Group's largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 15.2% (2016: 15.3%) of the Group’s total revenue. The
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 55.3%
(2016: 55.4%) of the Group's total purchases, while the largest
supplier for the year accounted for approximately 17.9% (2016:
16.1%) of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any of the shareholders of the
Company who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES =]
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 510 (2016: 547) employees WR-—Z—+F+-_A=+—0  KXEEH#HF510
in total. The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’'s HEE(ZZE—RE:5474) - TRARBSE
employees by their responsibilities: DR EEE SR
2017

—=—+tF
Management, Finance & Administration EIR - B RATIR 40
Sales & Marketing HE K& 55
Design, Research & Development AR AT AR 75
Production HE 310
Quality Control oS BEYE 30
Total et 510

Total staff costs for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB32,607,000 (2016: RMB38,761,000) and the details are set out in
note 6(b) to the financial statements. Remuneration for employees is
based upon their qualification, experience, job nature, performance
and market condition.

The Group has established various welfare plans including the provision
of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and
other relevant insurance for employees who are employed by the
Group pursuant to the rules and regulations of the PRC and the existing
policy requirements of the local government. The Group also maintains
the employee short-term health insurance and unforeseen injury
insurance. In addition, the Group provides staff quarters to its
employees.

Directors and qualified employees of the Company may be granted
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme (as defined
below).
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Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows: RAFERN  EEZHREWT :
Executive Directors: HMITES -

Ms. Xie Qingmei FEELZL

Mr. Wu Zheyan REELE
Non-executive Director: EHITES -

Mr. Wu Dongping REFEAE
Independent Non-executive Directors: BN IEMITESE -
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei SERHIE

Prof. Su Wengiang BR R HUR

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board of EEMFHBHENAFRI EESLSREERE |—5 -
Directors and senior management” in this annual report.

Indemnity of Directors EEWE
The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability ARG HEAEELBELTHEENEELBRE ST
insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the — {#k RENE EFZSHE EZFRE S B AT ER R
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the year. RERER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:

Interest in shares

EERERTHRAERRKR®D - HE
RORESHEZRAR

R-F—tH+-_A=+—8" §$i$’&7m
RITBRABEARAREBABZEE(EERLE
KB RGIFE XV ER) M - MR REZT
BERBIESLBEROIFEXVEE7 RESDH
BAMEARNE LR R MoAR (BRERE
R EPIN BRI X E SR ERR A%
BHgERLORR) - SIREE S RS 515 352
R A ZIGRFT M & R M SR R AR BIFf 8210
F# EMETAESTETESFXZNRETRIA
HMEARR LB ORRIT

\\\

m

kﬂ

Fl

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SEREH
ERgA S ety Kir®E B (%)
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 449,647,412 14.56%
REEHRE Long position (Note)
SEtlEENER e (M)
Beneficial owner/Long position 11,002,940 0.36%
ERWAAN A
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 9,633,380 0.31%
SEEL L EnBAN R

Note: Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas
Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.

Hist - REBERERB R/ HE 2 E %A KR FGreen Seas
Capital Limited #58 8RR {5 R #E B i = o

HREMEZERBRDA | 47
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation defined under the SFO
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:

Interest in shares

FERRALXQITARS R EER G
E’J*Eﬁﬁ&uua

RZZE—tF+=A=+—H TIAL(IEIH
BEEYARARBITHAE) RARQ ARG 4B
AR TP HEBRIEESFMBEERFIEXVEF2 R
FIDEBRENATHEENERIAE - HIRIES
% R HIE G015 336 RBS A Z G &
BmIORE

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
BN
%218 HE S EatE K& E B (%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 1) 449,647,412 14.56%
BE=BEEAN TR (1)
Hong Kong Run De Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 2) 430,000,000 13.92%
Holdings Limited BEmEEA B (HZE2)
BERRFERARA
BREAGEAMEIERAT Interest in controlled corporation/ 430,000,000 13.92%
Long position (Note 2)
Rt EEN R TE (MiE2)
Mr. Lin Jian Interest in controlled corporation/ 430,000,000 13.92%
Long position (Note 2)
N e REGEE R R FTE2)
Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 3) 689,130,000 22.31%

Capital Holdings Limited
%ﬁé&ln Eleat= s
BRA

BEnlAAN TR #E3)

PRAEMERRERAT | 69
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
&1 e 53 ERKEHE Bin®E B (%)
R T R Interest in controlled corporation/ 689,130,000 22.31%
BRAA Long position (Note 3)
EEtlEEN R T e (M 3)
Mr. Wang Xin Interest in controlled corporation/ 689,130,000 22.31%
Long position (Note 3)
Dk it 2HEE SR R (T 3)
Note: Bzt -
1. The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and 1. Green Seas Capital Limited ¥) & S B /TR A B RE E

beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited.

2. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited is legally
and beneficially owned by 18 K & A R L T B R 2 &) . The 98% issued
share capital of 1& K & A 1t T A R A &l is legally and beneficially
owned by Mr. Lin Jian, who is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited.

3. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by /&8 T 3 R EIZIRE R A
A). The 98% issued share capital of E/8FIE) T X REIZERBER AT is
legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Xin, who is deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that
were required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO as of 31 December 2017.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 15 June
2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
and acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot, issue
and deal with the ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps
as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect
to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue immediately following completion of the Global Offering (as
defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being
100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may be issued under
the options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the
Company), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
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Directors’ Report continea

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of
the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number
of shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised, and the period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have
been granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a
particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the shares on the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the
date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10
years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
100,000,000, representing 3.24% of the issued shares of the
Ccompany.
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Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or and other body corporate.

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this report, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, or that require the Company to enter into any
agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing shares,
here entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Save and except the subscription below, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchase, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SUBSCRIPTION

For the purpose of raising capital and broadening the shareholder
base and capital base of the Company, the Company entered into an
agreement with the subscribers for the subscription of shares of the
Company on 24 January 2017 (“Subscription Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the subscribers
conditionally agreed to subscribe for (“Subscription”) and the
company conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of
514,500,000 ordinary shares of 0.01 each (“Subscription Shares”) at
the subscription price of HK$0.13 per Subscription Share
(“Subscription Price”). The closing price per ordinary share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 23 January 2017, being the date of the
Subscription Agreement was HK$0.144. The net subscription price
was HK$0.1296 per Subscription Share.

The completion was conditional upon the fulfilment of (i) the Listing
Committee granting listing of and permission to deal in the
Subscription Shares (and such listing and permission not
subsequently revoked); and (i) there being no breach of warranties
which is material in the context of the Subscription.
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There are not less than six and not more than 10 Subscribers in
number subscribing for the Subscription Shares. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all
reasonable enquiries, all the subscribers (including the ultimate
beneficial owner of the Subscriber which is a corporation) are
independent third parties as at the date of the announcement and
upon completion, Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited became a
substantial shareholder and connected person of the Company.

The aggregate gross and net proceeds from the Subscription were
approximately HK$66,885,000 and approximately HK$66,695,000
respectively. The Company retained the net proceeds of the
Subscription for research and development expenditure to enhance
research and product competitiveness of the Group and as general
working capital of the Group.

The Directors consider that the Subscription represented
opportunities to raise additional funding for the Group's business
operation and strengthen the financial position for the Group's
business developments and broaden the Shareholders base of the
Company. The Directors also considered the Subscription as a
preferred method of fund raising as compared with other equity fund
raising exercises based on the time and costs involved.

The Subscription was completed on 10 February 2017 and
514,500,000 ordinary shares were issued and allotted.

The usage of the net proceeds raised under the subscription above
are disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Financial Review — Use of Net Proceeds from the Global
Offering, Placing and Subscription” in this report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there is no transaction of the Group constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules (2016: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 30 to the
financial statements, and none of which constitutes a discloseable
connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

During the Year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into an agreement with Fujian Wancheng Property Development
Limited* to dispose of the land use rights in relation to two parcels of
land located in Zhangping at a consideration of RMB30,000,000.

The Directors consider that the disposal would allow the Group to
unlock the value of its investment in the land use rights and to realise
cash resources in improving the liquidity and strengthening the
financial position of the Group.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management of
potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that based on
confirmations and information provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to
review any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the

Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Group were entered into or existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group supported a wide variety of charitable
activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. Donations of approximately
RMB374,000 (2016: RMB833,000) were made by the Group to various
charitable organisations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of
their holding of such securities.

AUDITOR

KPMG resigned as auditors of the Company on 16 November 2016
and BDO Limited has been appointed as the auditors of the Company
on 8 December 2016.

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of BDO Limited
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Xie Qingmei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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Board of Directors and Senior Management
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Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team of the Company during the Year and/or as at the
date of this report are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 38, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as a
Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura”) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
2006.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University. Mr. Wu is
a son of Mr. Wu Dongping.

Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and as the Chairman on 23 May 2016. Ms.
Xie is primarily responsible for procurement matters in respect of the
Group. She has over 15 years of experience in corporate
management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group in 1999,
and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping Kimura
since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006. Ms. Xie
was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura as well
as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December 2000, and
has been running the procurement department of Zhangping Kimura
since 2003.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wu Dongping, aged 63, is a non-executive Director of the
Company since 15 June 2012 and is also the founder of our Group.
Mr. Wu Dongping was the chief engineer of Zhangping Kimura from
February 2006 to November 2010. Before the founding of the Group,
Mr. Wu Dongping was the chairman and the general manager of
Zhangping Kimura from December 1995 to January 2006 and the
director of Zhangping Textile Machinery Factory in Fujian (f&&%& & F
& EEESMIR) from December 1992 to November 1995, respectively.
Mr. Wu Dongping has been a member of the Technical Committee of
Structural Use of Wood under the National Committee of
Standardisation Technology of Timber (ZBEIARMIZRE(LFME B & 45
BAARMOHEMZE ). He was elected as a member of The 4th
Preservation Committee of Wood Industry Institute, Chinese Society
of Wood Industry (FBEIMEBEARM TED S ARMIFTRMRERTLEN
JEZE%) in April 2007 and was elected to the position of vice
president of the China Wood Preservation Industry Association (4
ARIRETEWE) in October 2011. Mr. Wu Dongping has over 21
years of experience in the fields of wood processing, preservation
and timber structures. Mr. Wu Dongping has participated in, on
behalf of our Group, the drafting of two PRC national and forestry
industry standards, and has been involved in the reviewing of PRC
national and forestry industry standards.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Hin Chi (Mr. Lam), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 June
2012. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and associates member of The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, respectively. Mr. Lam graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma in
Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts degree (Honours)
in Accountancy. Mr. Lam has over 29 years of experience in finance,
audit and accounting. Mr. Lam was a senior personnel of a number
of companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of
VSTECS Holdings Limited (stock code: 856), which is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Professor Jin Zhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 80, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation with over
40 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor Jin graduated
from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored in forestry
products chemical processing. He studied wood preservation and
modification technologies in the United States as a government-
appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting scholar at
Oregon State University and Mississippi State University from 1994 to
1995 respectively.

Professor Su Wengqiang (Professor Su), aged 62, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 34 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (855
E# 8) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions in
timber industry, e.g., council member of Standing Committee of the
Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (BEE/T &t T2 SR ES) (in
December 2004), committee member of Wood Science Institute of
the Chinese Society of Forestry (REME S A RIEDE) (in April
2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation Committee of
China Timber and Wood Products Distribution Association Wood
Preservation Committee (R EIAM BAKZRBHREAMIBEEEZE
CERIEEHEE) (in December 2009), member of Board of Experts
Committee of Standardisation Committee of China Wood
Preservation Industry Association (FEAMRE T EHEEREES)
(in October 2011), committee member of the Wood Preservation
Research Committee of the Wood Science Institute of the Chinese
Society of Forestry (FEIME @AM B BN @AMREREEEZES) (n
April 2007) and editor of editorial committee of Biomass Chemical
Engineering published by Institute of Chemical Industry of Forest
Products (FEIMERIZREGMENCE T ERRM (EDBELET
) ) (in December 2010). Professor Su graduated from Northeast
Forestry University in July 1982, major in professional chemical
processing of forestry products (#RE{L 21 T Ti2H %), and obtained
a Doctorate Degree in December 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 52, is the chief financial officer of
our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group’s accounting and financial management
affairs. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the
financial departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (TFa=
EF ¥ AR AT and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory (f&i24 E I )
respectively. Mr. Chen has over 22 years of experience in corporate
financial management and possesses the qualifications of an
accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (f@EE& RMEIHER) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.

Yu Hok Sum (Mr. Yu), aged 34, joined our Group in October 2015,
is the group financial controller and company secretary of the Group.
Mr. Yu is responsible for our Group’s accounting and financial
management. Mr Yu has over 11 years of experience in finance,
accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yu had
worked for one of the big four international accounting firms and an
international valuation consultancy company. Mr. Yu holds a Master
of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
&N AZ B AN

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY AND BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 89 to 192, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or 10ss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

FRAREREE

REBESNHEXHE  BREZFAR/TEFEZ
RARRNGEMBERERTREENER - BF
EERGAMBHRRMMLERERHRENSE
FH MIERUFERERBERER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
REBERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ESFEERIPNMNEEREERER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
ME  BER Rt {E

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB
631,169,000. The loss before taxation of RMB 38,203,000
incurred by the Group indicates that these assets may be
impaired. Accordingly, the Group subjected its property,
plant and equipment to an impairment test during the
year.

Management determined the recoverable amounts based
on the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. This matter is significant to our audit due to the
material size of the production assets’ carrying amounts
and the judgement involved in the impairment
assessment. The assessment of recoverable amount
involves management exercising significant judgement
and making assumptions about future market and
economic conditions.

The disclosure of the above significant estimates is
provided in Note 3(v) to the financial statements, and
further information related to the property, plant and
equipment is provided in Note 11 to the financial
Statements.
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Our response:

—  We evaluated the valuation methodology adopted
by the independent valuer and considered their
independence, qualifications and experience.

— The key assumptions used in the independent
valuer’s model included revenue and cost
projections, long term growth rates and discount
rates. We involved our internal specialists to assess
the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
and reasonableness of certain assumptions used by
the management and the independent valuer in
their valuation process by comparing to acceptable
market parameters and data.

— Assessing the appropriateness of the methodology
used by management.

— Checking the arithmetical accuracy of the
impairment computation.
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Key Audit Matter
RRERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ESEERIPNMMEEREERXEER

Valuation of inventories

FRIGE

The Group held inventories amounting to RMB
331,118,000 as at 31 December 2017. Inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those
inventories are aged and damaged, if they have become
obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined.

Management has carried out inventory review at the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies. Management has concluded that
there is write-down of RMB 2,354,000 in respect of the
inventories for the year ended 31 December 2017. This
conclusion was based on inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the determining the net
realisable values involved significant management
judgement. (Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements and the Group ' s critical accounting estimates
and assumptions in relation to the net realisable value of
inventories set out in notes 3(i))
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Our response:

— Assessing and evaluating the inventory ageing
analysis of the Group at year end, and subsequent
usage and sales of inventory after year end,

— Testing inventories to assess if they are stated at
the lower of cost or net realisable value by
comparing the actual sales value to the book value
for a selected samples of finished goods and raw
material, and

— Assessing the sufficiency of the write down on
inventories made by management with reference to
the inventory ageing analysis and the subsequent
transaction prices of the inventories, on a sample
basis.
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Key Audit Matter
RBERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ESFEERPINMMEEREFERER

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 5 e g gk TE i AT [B] 4%

Some customers having higher outstanding days than the
Group’s average trade receivables aging date, increasing
their inherent exposure to credit risk. As outlined in note
20b, there were trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 more than 12 months past due.

The inherent subjectivity involved in the management
making judgements in relation to credit risk exposures.
The collectability of the Group’s trade receivables and the
valuation of the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is a key audit matter due to the significant
management judgment involved. (Refer to note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements and the Group’s critical
accounting estimates and assumptions in relation to the
impairment of trade receivables set out in notes 3(ii)
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Our response:

— Enquiring management’s knowledge of any

recognised bad debts and assessing the
appropriateness of the provision of impairment
recognised with evidence;

— Testing the aging of the trade receivables and
assessing the recoverability of long outstanding
trade receivable balances by comparing
management’s views of recoverability of amounts
outstanding to historical patterns of collection; and

—  Checking to the subsequent settlement of the trade
receivables after year end.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Group’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun
Practising Certificate No. P0O5804

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or LoSS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—_FT—+F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA REZIR)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
K at AR®BTT ARBT T
Revenue kA 4 462,191 442,328
Cost of sales HHEE AN (430,018) (394,5006)
Gross profit E£F 32,173 47,822
Other revenue E A 5() 15,777 29,308
Other net loss Hib 18 %58 5(b) (14,884) (21,877)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE kDR (17,600) (20,219)
Administrative expenses THFAX (47,249) (46,546)
Loss from operations EEBER (31,783) (11,512
Finance costs BE Bk AR 6(a) (6,216) (9,037)
Share of losses of associates PaNEhi kNI G8i= (204) (129)
Loss before taxation BRIRBIEIR 6 (38,203) (20,678)
Income tax expense Frisfim 7() (2,353) (1,617)
Loss for the year FREE (40,556) (22,295)
RMB RMB
AR®TT AR
Loss per share WBEREHR
Basic and diluted EARREE 10 (0.0134) (0.0087)
The notes on pages 96 to 192 form part of these consolidated HE 9B ZEF 192 BRI T ARG M SRR H —
financial statements. & o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeEmMEMEE NS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA REZIR)

2017 2016
—Z—tf ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBEFT
Loss for the year FRHA (40,556) (22,295)
other comprehensive income FRARM2EKS
for the year, net of tax (MERMIE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HENEE DR Em K
profit or 0ss: mIEA
Exchange differences on translation of financial REGINEE T RREER
statements of foreign operations PE 3 =48 (16,649) 15,502
Total comprehensive income for the year FRh2EKSH#E (57,205) (6,793)

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR IR

At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA REZIR)

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
KiaF AR®TT AREEF T
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 11 631,169 548,043
Lease prepayments FAETEATK 12 73,650 98,096
Non-current prepayments for acquisitions UsFE#% - MR &5 &8
of property, plant and equipment FERNERTR TR 13 34,603 64,167
Interests in associates i iel/NE e 14 24,434 23,355
Other financial assets HEemEE 16 2,495 2,495
Deferred tax assets ELEFRIBE B 18 5,984 4,596
772,335 740,752
Current assets BN EE
Inventories ER 19 331,118 319,500
Current portion of lease prepayments HETBRRE BN S » 12 1,664 1,966
Trade and other receivables 25 N H W RIE 20 196,604 239,886
Pledged deposits [REEEGLES 21 78,261 147,192
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESZEED 22(a) 113,501 173,986
721,148 882,530
Current liabilities piod b=
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk EAb e FRIE 23 64,153 33,329
Bank loans RITER 24 233,187 340,072
Debentures &5 26 - 17,890
Current portion of deferred income EEWA K BNEREE 5 25 1,163 1,163
Current taxation BIHEARS 18 25,966 26,324
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 324469 === 48778
Net current assets B ER(E 396,679 463,752

—E L EER
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position continued
BRI R

At 31 December 2017 R =—Z—+&F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA REZIR)

2017 2016
—E—tF B ANGS
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
izt AR®TRT ARBT T
Total assets less current liabilities #wEmEBAK 1,169,014 1,204,504
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Bank loans IRITER 24 = 56,290
Debentures &% 26 16,790 -
Non-current portion of deferred income  EIEUW A FIERNERER 5 25 16,038 17,201
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIBEE 18 5,596 2,296
38,424 75,787
NET ASSETS HERE 1,130,590 1,128,717
Equity e
Share capital FZ N 27(b) 25,544 20,987
Reserves EE 1,105,046 1,107,730
TOTAL EQUITY #aun 1,130,590 1,128,717

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 R-ZT—NF=ZA -+ ~BEEES I & MRE

March 2018. FIJEE -
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE WiBsE
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
TTE B E, TE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

NP/

TR

'A"/\

NN

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—-F

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA REZIR)

—tE+ZA=T-HALEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FOFHRERHE AR

Share Share Exchange Statutory Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
2.3 KRR ER G EE R RERT Ha
RMVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMVB'000
ARETT AREFL ARBFL ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
(note 27(b)  (note 27(c)(i)  (note 27(c)i))  (note 27(c)iii)
(Biso7)  (Wa27en)  (WaE2zem)  (Wa27c)
At1January2016 R-$-7%-A-R 087 6r8h s 2401 aaaas 118510
Changes in equity “E-REHREE:
for 2016:
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (22,295) (22,295)
Other comprehensive income E 2 Bz - - 15,502 - - 15,502
Total comprehensive income 2EMzR® R T D802 SRR = e
Appropriations to Statutory  EEEF
reserve - - - 1,264 (1,264) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S 2. SO ..o R
At 31December2016  R-B—-X&F
and 1 January 2017 +ZA=+—-HR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, —$-t®-A-8 0% ex78 85 53665 A07886 1128717
Changes in equity “I-tEHRen:
for 2017:
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (40,556) (40,556)
Other comprehensive income £ 2 &4 - - (16,649) - - (16,649)
Total comprehensive income #EMze® T T lees T ose  (7.205)
Issue of shares upon REREIRN
subscription 4,557 54,521 - - - 59,078
Appropriations to Statutory B EEEE
reserve - - - 1,119 (1,119) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Ay s e 00
At 31 December 2017 RIB—+F
+-A=+—H 25,544 677,305 6,746 54,784 366,211 1,130,590
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

=IAN ANy g —1
,Z\v BT ==}
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZT—+F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A R¥37R)

2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
izt AR®TRT ARBT T
Operating activities BEEE
Cash generated from operations REEBFRERS 22(b) 48,318 89,357
Income tax paid BT ATER (802) (101
Net cash generated from BETBMARAQBH
___operating activites 47516 8925
Investing activities B’EEH
Payment for the purchase of property, TREEME BEX
plant and equipment BT (89,355) (89,167)
Payment for the purchase of XTEEREERMNR
lease prepayment (6,356) -
Interest received 2FE 3,405 5,687
Payment for investment in associates AR E A RIRIEE (1,350) (9,450)
Dividend income received B B 354 283
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE  BEMKEE
plant and equipment s 30A = 12
Proceeds from disposal of lease HEHERMN RS HKIA
prepayment 30,000 -
Net cash used in investing BREEBFRARSBHE
activities (63,302) (92,635)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continued

= ACTHE A = L
mEREemER®

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—_FT—+F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AA REZIR)

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —E-REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
KiaF AR¥®TT ARET T
Financing activities A E R E
Proceeds from new bank loans IR ITE RFTERIE 459,902 731,255
Repayments of bank loans EBIRITER (625,129) (737,926)
Increase in pledged deposits [z eSSl 65,678 (10,108)
Advance from associates L NI RS T Y 22,517 -
Interest paid ARl (14,318) (17,582)
Proceeds from issue of shares B E R BT (D K FR TS
upon placing, net of issuing costs FOE - fIRBREITRY 59.246 -
Subscription shares expense REERM X (168) -
Net cash used in financing METEFARE SRR
_ activites (32272 (34,361)
Net decrease and cash equivalents RH&RESSE MR BHE (48,058) (37,740)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—H®EERRS
at 1 January SED 173,986 196,901
Effect of foreign exchange ExgEnpeE
rate changes (12,427) 14,825
Cash and cash equivalents B+ZRA=+—88
at 31 December BeRBA&EEY 22(a) 113,501 173,986
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 October 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Group”). The consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 26
March 2018.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
A B B RERM EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

g}

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERETHHBE®
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) Bk mEREE
statements

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that derivative financial instruments are stated at their
fair value (see note 2())).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

HEGEMBHREDIUARE 2R
WP AAERELT T - REN
WMEMEANGEELERE LKA
EoETTES BT AR AR
(RBF=E203)) -

RIBEBRP B REER - RRELI T
WA BEENAFLFEBRE
REEE A WAREREZHS
REEVFIE - (AR R BRER o RFMAET R
HERRIDREBELRNESER
ATHEERAENEBREMARSE
i AEGEREREEAE MR
ERNEEMAENREEFDHE
MK - ERERAEERINZER
it

ZEHREABRREBETUE
B - AnEFHERT T EEERERT
MWHRELETE  BBBETESHR
AR MR RERTH
BERRKBROELTE  AEk
YEH IS FT AR R AR SR B B RR o

B I R A B R B s R R B B P4
S A MBWMRAERNTZEN A A
RABET T BABARE R = R HORE M 5
3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

b2 & B RS R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f S BRI » UAARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2017

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company:

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure
Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrecognised Losses

Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of

2014-2016 Cycle Interests in Other Entities: Clarification

of the scope of disclosure requirements
inIFRS 12

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

g

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSS.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

AT
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

©)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
4= ACH
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

AsSSociates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 2(m)(i)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of
the post- acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group'’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Group’'s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
A TS IRA M EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HERI)  UAEREZIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEASHBE@#S)
(Continued)
(@ Goodwil @ M=

Goodwill represents the excess of:

() The aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) The net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
R 4 B R R R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f S BRI » UAARESR)

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
does not include any dividends earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(w).

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Dividend income
from equity securities are recognised in profit or l0ss in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(w)(v).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFHBE®
(Continued)
(h) Other investments in equity securities (h)y EMRAFEHFEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits
to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or l0ss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(my(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion

— Leasehold Over the unexpired term of lease but

improvement no more than 5 years

— Plant and machinery 10 years

— Furniture, fittings 5years

and equipment
— Motor vehicles 5years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Cconstruction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(m)(ii)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and installation during the construction
period. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction
in progress until it is substantially completed and ready
for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(1)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

0]

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of trade and other receivables
and investment in equity securities

Trade and other receivables and investment in
equity securities that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

. significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

. it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation,

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

. a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
and investment in equity securities
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investment in associates accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(f)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 2(m)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(m)(ii).

For unguoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
iR TSR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
and investment in equity securities
(Continued)

For trade and other receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

For other receivables carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated
recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
and investment in equity securities
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subseguent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications except in the case of goodwill,
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment l0ss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

. property, plant and equipment;

e lease prepayments;

. goodwill;

. non-current prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

. investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
iR TSR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

. Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

. Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

g

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
. Reversals of impairment l0sses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. A reversal of an impairment 10ss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or
in any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able to
specify the major structural elements of the design. The
accounting policy for contract revenue is set out in note
2(w)(ii). When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as
an expense by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

Cconstruction contracts (continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of each
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses
and progress billings, and are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the “Gross
amount due from customers for contract work” (as an
asset) under “Trade and other receivables” or the “Gross
amount due to customers for contract work” (as a
liability) under “Trade and other payables”, as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are
included under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
presented as “Receipts in advance” under “Trade and
other payables”.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using an effective interest method.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&

g}

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HERI)  UAEREZIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(U) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

. in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

. in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

. the same taxable entity; or

. different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(v) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Company or the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
A TS RA M e

J1\ Ay =
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(k5

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(V)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or l0ss
as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

ETSN - AARBST)

BERETHE#)

(V)

Bk EE®)

AR REE AL E MR - 24
S BRRE A SEfhAT - BIRREHR
BERURAE  ETAERELE
MEmHERI - BBEEREART
—HERSARREMH DR E LT A HE
EREFE  ARSFEETEER/X
REE HEEENERHEEREE
R BRON o

WA HER

WAT iz B Mk B R E R D FER
2 MASEERRESLENR B
WA R RRA (3@ ) geml 525t 8 - B
BTG AR BERAERKA

() HEEm
WAREFPEXEM LB
6 B LB K O] 3R RERR o UK
ATBERBERKEMEE
B AR E HITE o

(i) BHEA
ETIRANMNERET SR
it REBIEEBRA QYA
RATILONEER  KER
EELROKRAE G HMNMEE
BRIRA BB DIFTE -

BEIREAOMAEREIAT M
s RlERERRKRENEE
H A KIRAHERIA ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(W) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised as deferred income that is
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset. An unconditional
government grant is recognised in profit or loss as
other revenue when the grant becomes receivable.

(v) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

/\\/

(Expressec/ in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k=BT + UAAREIITR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

()

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of
financial position items including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into Renminbi at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Renminbi, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that operation with
functional currency other than Renminbi is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5= BTSN

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties

(2)

@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

Vi

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associates of the
same third party or vice versa.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
e M EHRER M s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f S BRI » UAARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFHBE®
(Continued)
(2) Related parties (continued) (2 EEEt ()
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the b W—EAEBFTE TIEMIE
following conditions applies: (Continued) e AZEREAEERH
i (&)

vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi, VTt A tHEEE
influence over the entity or is a member of TENIEZERE
the key management personnel of the entity (EJ?EZ HEEMNERA)E
(or of a parent of the entity). EEBENE -

viii. The entity, or any member of a group of vii. EBERIEBXNEER -5
which it is a part, provides key management MEREBEKE QAR
personnel services to the group or to the EENEETQFRE
group’s parent. FEEBRABRY -

Close members of the family of a person are those family REARATHIERIEERZERBETR
members who may be expected to influence, or be FHBRFAAETEZBALTIE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity EFENREKETBIE

and include:

i, that person’s children and spouse or domestic i ZATHFLZREBHEER

partner; *

i. children of that person’s spouse or domestic i. BRBRBATIHEREBXEEZELEHN
partner; and Rk

ii. dependents of that person or that person’s spouse jii. mBALTHZBALHRBK
or domestic partner. REBHNORE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)
AT e B R R M5

(Ex,oressec/ in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (bt S HERI) + UAAREZTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERETHBE®
(Continued)
(aa) Segment reporting (@a) 7 &P 2%

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
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environment. Operating segments which are not DR BRI RAE2%H -
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

GRS BT R M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k=BT + UAAREIITR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and distribution expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
historical experience of selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles or changes
in market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the end of the reporting period to ensure
inventory is shown at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

(ii) Impairment of trade receivables

Management determines the impairment of trade
receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on
the credit history of its debtors and current market
conditions. If the financial conditions of the customers
were to deteriorate, actual write-off would be higher than
estimated. Management reassesses the impairment of
trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.

(iii) Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based
on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

g}

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of these transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair
value less costs to sell. These calculations require the
use of judgments and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to profit or loss.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
A M ERRN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HERI)  UAEREZIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(vi) Fair value measurement (vi)

SR HE R A )

ERROUEEISE R e )
AVENE

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group'’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

. Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

. Level 2. Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:
. Financial instruments (note 31(f)(i)).
For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the items above, please refer to the
applicable notes.

FARKEBRER cEZREENRA
ERIEATEFE B RERRT
BERE -

AEETRIFEREERABZA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

A B RE N T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

Revenue
The principal activities of the Grou

(@)

(= BTSN - UARKESTR)

p are manufacturing

and sales of outdoor wooden products, engaging in
projects of outdoor wooden products including the

provision of design and installation

services, retail sales

of outdoor wooden products through self-operated retail

shops and manufacturing and sales
products.

Revenue represents
() the sales value of goods sol

of renewable energy

d to customers less

returns, discounts, and value added taxes and

other sales tax; and

(i) contract revenue derived from projects of outdoor
wooden products including the provision of design

and installation services.

The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in revenue is analysed as follows:

(@)

4 WARDHERK

YA
AEENEZXEGREERKEEFI
AEm EPHIARRIEAR (B
RHURGRZERS) BREET
EETEPIARBBUREERHE
BARRER °

LN

) ETFTEPERNEEEERER
B kRERERMEE
BIE R

(ih WEPIAHRAR(BER
R R ERE) ENE
KU ©

RIRAARTERH S EER WA S
BOMWT :

2017 2016
—E—+t%F NS
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
Sales of outdoor wooden products SHE P ANREL S 436,841 421,761
Retail sales of wooden products TR 5,280 7,930
Contract revenue derived from WEEIAREGZIEE
projects of outdoor wooden (BFERHE RELER)
products including the provision of 384 £ A
design and installation services - 132
Sales of renewable energy products  $4& B 4 8LTRE @ 20,070 12,505
462,191 442,328

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

AT

=IAN
% -

B R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@)

Revenue (continued)
Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenues from a
customer of the Group’s sales of outdoor wooden
products amounted to RMB70,325,000, which represent
10% or more of the Group’s revenues.

Two customers accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 31(a). Further details
regarding the Group's principal activities are disclosed
below.

Geographic information of revenue

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from
external customers. The geographical location of

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

4 WARDTHEHK =)

(@)

WA &)

BEIEEFNER
HE-—T—+&+-A=+—AL%
- REARNEEEES IR —
2 F KA B A R 70,325,000
T+ (AR B 10% A L -

BE-_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIF
B MBEPIASERAR10% 3K
A e

BRZEEPERNETEERRN
HBEEHNME3@) - FRAANEEE
BEGNE—SFBERENOT -

WA 2 iR

TR BEAEEREINEEF K
AHPMIE BB o FF AR
BEAERRME SR REHE A

customers is based on the location at which the goods 4E o
were delivered or the services were provided.
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥®TT ARBTT
The PRC (place of domicile) R (fEFTHE) 107,332 88,019
North America =M 236,279 273,842
Europe BN 18,303 44,017
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) DKE(TEERR) 16,945 16,160
Austrglia &M 83332 2029
354,859 354,309
462,191 442,328
R ERER AT

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continea)

A B TR R T e

(Ex,oressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&

H BRI

C UAABRBESR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING WARDE2 8| )
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting () HEB2H
In @ manner consistent with how the Group manages its RREASEEEEER —ZWNA
business and the way in which information is reported = - RERERD B RRBR MR

internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified four
reportable segments, namely Manufacturing and sales of
wooden products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

Retail business: retail sales of outdoor wooden
products through self-operated retail shops.

Projects of outdoor wooden products: engaged in
projects of outdoor wooden products including the
provision of design and installation services to
domestic customers.

Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass
pellet fuel to both domestic and overseas
customers.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
A M ERRN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the
revenue derived from the Group’s external
customers by Manufacturing and sales of wooden
products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.

The measure used for reportable segment (l0ss)/
profit is “(loss)/profit after taxation (excluding the
after tax effect of government subsidies)” of
Manufacturing and sales of wooden products,
Retail business, Projects of outdoor wooden
products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is
not provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management and accordingly, no
segment assets or liabilities information is
presented.

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

4 WAR
L) 7
(i

eS|
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BETIEEERREEAZR
7 BPEVEAE

A2 BBRAD RIEEEER
HEARER  TEXK - PI
AEMBBAREENBER
FREREMM B AKESNEEE
FPRSHRA -

A28, B (ER), 8 FIER
A EEMSEEMBEAR
B TEEH  PINRRE
BB AR AEE RS B AR
REME (BT (BB, &
AT BREBRFMHR 2 HEY
&)]-
DHEERBENFETE
HrarKEEsEEERME
WA EERDAEEREEE
#t

AR ERAT

133



134

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

AR E

BB HRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

)

Segment results (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment

C UAABRBESR)

(0)

4 WARDHBE®H#@)

DEPR AR (#)

(i) DEERE)

RBE-F—+ER=

iy
ARSERD BERFE A
EEESEEERENARA

performance for the years ended 31 December SET /D FHE R w0
2017 and 2016 is set out below: N
2017
2-t%
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Projects of  and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden Retail wooden energy
products business products products Total
LERME P FEE EERME
KE& SEREK FE BEREER #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB®TR AB®TR AE®TR IN:1 Ao AB®TR
Revenue derived from the Group's JEEREEINBEF
external customers BIA 436,841 5,280 - 20,070 462,191
Inter-segment revenue AEERA 17,629 - - 3,105 20,734
Reportable segment revenue PE:VEL N 454,470 5,280 - 23,175 482,925
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A 2|A Eﬂﬁ Ya:ii
(lossyprofit after taxation (BHit (BR)/&F
(excluding the after tax effectof (TR ERFERZ
government subsidiies) hrye) (44,515) (1,946) - 3,541 (42,920)
Depreciation and amortisation & RE (23,736) (1,234) - (507) (25,477)
Changes in fair value of derivative T4 4B T AAFEES
financial instruments — unrealised  — KEH (12,307) - - - (12,307)
Impairment of property 0E  BERERERE
plant and equipment (2,323) - - - (2,323)
Written-off of inventories FEME (2,354) = = = (2,354)

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A IS RERM 5T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TS » LUAREEZITR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDE2HR@)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b)) DEZHME)
(i) Segment results (Continued) ) DEREE)
2016
B
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Projects of and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden Retail wooden energy
products business products products Total
EERHE PoMVEm  EEREE
= TEXK BE BARRER @t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR

Revenue derived from the Group's BB AEEHNERE

external customers A 21,761 7930 132 12,505 442,328
Inter-segment revenue AHERA 17453 - - - 17453
Reportable segment revenue DEHELON 439214 7,930 132 12,505 459,781

Reportable segment (loss)/profit A 2|A Eﬂﬁ )/ &7

(lossy/profit after taxation (BHitk (BR)/ &7

(excluding the after tax effectof (TR ERFERZ

government subsidies) HEyg) (31,86¢) (2,459) (162) 1,249 (33,238)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (23,369) (1239 (1) (477) (25,096)
Impairment of goodwill EERE (4,300 - - - (4,300
Changes in fair value of derivative #7142 B TAATEEH

financial instruments — unrealised — K& 1,869 - - - 1,869
Written-off of inventories FEME (8,656) - - - (8,656)

TREMEZERERAE | 135
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

A B RE N T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BTSN - UARKESTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDHEHR#)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b) DEE2FHE)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) TEFRIBURAHETZHS
revenue and reportable segment loss EIENYER
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue A 2HHD FWA 482,925 459,781
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %445 2RI A (20,734) (17,453)
Consolidated revenue ERE WA 462,191 442,328
Loss Fi]
Reportable segment loss derived  JRE AEBESNBEFH
from the Group's external AI2HH EEE
customers (42,920) (33,238)
Government subsidies (net of tax) BT AL (FORRFLIE) 9,589 19,458
Unallocated head office and RAOBBRWERE R
corporate expenses NG (7,225) (8,515)
Consolidated loss after taxation e BRTiREE (40,556) (22,295)
(iii) Geographical information (ii) HEH

No geographical segment information is presented
as all the Group’s revenue is derived from
operations in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and most of the Group’s non-current assets
are all located in the PRC.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017

AR A AR
NS DEEE R
it AR EEA S OIERBE
BEGIARE - B R A D
B ER2 T -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

AT

=IAN
% -

B R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS

(@)

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

5

H W AR b &858

Other revenue (@ EmiA
2017 2016
—B—t¥ T AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREFTT
Interest income on bank deposits BRI RF B 3,405 5,687
Government subsidies BT Eh 11,418 23,029
Dividend income A& B A 354 283
Rental income Al A 204 -
Others Hib 396 309
15,777 29,308

The Group received unconditional government subsidies
of RMB10,255,000 (2016: RMB21,866,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017. These government subsidies
were granted to Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry
Products Co, Ltd. (“Zhangping Kimura"). There were no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to these
government grants.

The Group recognised government subsidies as deferred
income which compensates the Group for the cost of its
land use right and the cost of infrastructure development.
RMB1,163,000 government subsidies (deferred income)
(2016: RMB1,163,000) were recognised as other revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2017, which is on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the relevant assets
(note 25).

BE-_Z—tF+-_A=1+—HLLF
& ZNER B AR IR BUT FRE B AR
#10,255000(ZFE—XF: AR
#21,866,0007T ) ° 18 &8 & F AR
MEBRAT (DEFEARN ) EELE
BT BE - 32 % DU 48 BE 10 B KW =
Bk B RIE -

AN BB BN AL RIEEWAER
TEAREE T AN A RERER
MK - BE—T—+F+ A
=+—BIEFE - BUSHR GELEYR
A AREE,163,0000 (ZF—RF ¢
AR#1,163,0007T) B R = EAb U
A Wi EREEMTERFAE
R R (MI7E25) »

AR AR AT
CEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

b2 & B RS R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

C UAABRBESR)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5

HWAREMEERE )

(Continued)
(b) Other net loss (b) EfuisEgE
2017 2016
—ZE=—tF —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) [E 5 Uiz (6518) F 58 8,966 (8,127)
Change in fair value of derivative PTESRTIANTE (3,448) (1,479)
financial instruments — realised 23— g5
Changes in fair value of derivative TESR I ANFEED
financial instruments — unrealised — R (12,307) 1,869
Gain on disposal of land use right HE T b ARl 580 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BE MR ElE
and equipment 105 -
Impairment of goodwill ERE = (4,300)
Impairment of property, Y BB MERERE
plant and equipment (2,323) -
Impairment of trade and B 5 I o Ath FE WK IE R (E
other receivables (3,493) -
Written-off of inventories FEMH (2,354) (8,656)
Others A (610) (1,184)
(14,884) (21,877)
6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 KRTAIERE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREZRTESIBACHIRR TS HEBS T ¢
(@) Finance costs @@ BB
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Interest expense on bank loans and  RITERREEHT LR X
debentures 14,501 17,582
Less: Interest expense capitalised B BATERIES
into construction in progress* BEEREF B (8,285) (8,545)
6,216 9,037

* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.01% (2016:
3.80%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2017.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NN bl

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 PBRRBAIEER®Z)
(b) Staff costs (b) B8 IRA

2017 2016

—=—tH% —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®TT ARBFIT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 30,862 35,866
Contributions to defined contribution  FEEBHFGRIRET 2K

retirement schemes 1,745 2,895

32,607 38,761

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group’s entities in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby
the entities are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits of

REBEPENEREIERER - A
SEURTFENER2 M ERE
0 TE B FUR KR A &) (T Rxat
) Bt FRERAREBE-ZT
—tERZF-RFT+_A=1t—H
LHEEZRAERREEFHN—EBAS
Lermezat SV HK - H et BItF
MR RE - RIBE S - 3R]
B RR R B R IKE N h AR AR 8

existing and retired employees are payable by the EEMEBIN  BREREMRZN - K&
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no BEEE—LET -
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.
(c) Other items () HAhIEH
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE®TRT ARBTT
Cost of inventories® (note 19(b)) FEERA (HfaF 190)) 430,018 394,506
Depreciation of property, W - BENRETE

plant and equipment (note 11) (HtaE11) 23,756 23,160
Amortisation of lease prepayments THETB B (FaF12)

(note 12) 1,732 1,936
Operating lease charges for properties 4248 &8 4957 1 593 680
Research and development costs A A 21,049 16,384
Auditors’ remuneration 1% A B & 1,089 1,114
# Cost of inventories includes RMB37,090,000 (2016: RMB40,180,000) # BE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—A8LF

for the year ended 31 December 2017 relating to staff costs, B BERABEAR37,09,0007T

depreciation and research and development costs, which amount
is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in note 6(b) for each of these types of

expenses.

(ZZT—RF : AR40,180,0007C) =
BREBTIRA  FERMERAS - EH
BRIV AR LA s ob) # &8
ZERXEBRBENRDEA -

RREIZERAER A
—E—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 ZEBBERANAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) #rEBEZERANTIETE

profit or loss represents:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARET T

Current tax — PRC corporate BRI — hEBI R EFREBR

income tax
Provision for the year FEREAE 441 684
Over-provision in respect of prior years £Ri@ {4 E A MR B - 3)
Deferred tax B R IE
Origination and reversal of temporary E4kEEERZR

differences (note 18) (Kt 18) 1,912 936

2,353 1,617

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

B BRI FF o

an\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B R5) » UAARESR)
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 REBEZRANFEHR @)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) HEAMEFTENHIAR
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HH & 515 Al R ¥ BR -
2017 2016
—Z2—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEF T
Loss before taxation B Hi A1 S 18 (38,203) (20,678)
National tax on loss before BRERIESENRERIE
taxation calculated at the rates BHEBRE R AER
applicable in the tax jurisdictions BRI ERE (B 30)
concerned (note (i) (10,290) (1,348)
Effect of PRC tax concession (note (i) =+ BB EE R 2 (M2 () - (1,083)
Effect of non-taxable income BERHBA 2 E (3,030) -
Effect of income reduction (note (iv)) USRI (HiTe (iv) (580) (313)
Effect of deductible temporary RERAINBREEENTE
differences not recognised 7,281 (151)
Effect of non-deductible expenses FEImST B BiIEE 5,069 6,563
Effect of research and development  FFZEEIZ INET IR RERI 2
expense bonus deduction (note (i) (K& (i) (2,631) (2,048)
Tax loss not recognised RERZBEER 6,534 -
Over provision in prior years B FEBERE = ®3)
Actual tax expense BEERMIAS H 2,353 1,617
Notes: Htet -

i The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate income
tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified.

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant jurisdictions
respectively.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group
did not earn any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

74k B 6 h BB B A R 3R 25% 05 TE B
EHmTEEXMEH - SHEEHER
b o

WA E fth, B1A % HO B BB R RIROBEIR 20 Al
ZEMRIAERORITEERETH -

BE-T—LtHFR-F-R"F+A
=t -RALFE AEELERIMER
MEBFEHOERMERBOEF - 8
ERBESTA R EE -

PRIAEYIERAERAT
—E—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

o

(Expressec/ in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

Zhangping Kimura applied and was approved for the High and
New Technology Entities (“HNTE") qualification under the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant regulations during
2016, and therefore is entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% for a period of three years from 2016 to 2018.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, qualified research and development expenses are
subject to income tax deductions at 150% on the amount actually
incurred.

Income reduction as stated in Article 33 of the Enterprise Income
Tax Law shall refer to the treatment that where an enterprise uses
the resources stipulated in the Catalogue for Comprehensive
Utilization of Resources Qualified for Enterprise Income Tax
Preferential Treatment as its major raw materials to produce
products that are not restricted or prohibited by the State and
satisfy the relevant State and industrial criteria and only 90% of
the income derived shall be calculated in its total income.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident corporate
investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject to withholding
income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC,
deferred tax liabilities are only recognized to the extent that such
profits are expected to be distributed through dividend payment
by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2017, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to overseas
holding company amounted to RMB317,501,000 (2016:
RMB342,353,000) and deferred tax liabilities of RMB31,750,000
(2016: RM34,235,000) have not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea)
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB #ETRIN » LUAREZT)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8 EEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEBBRTHEDIE 383N ETR AR (FEE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EENTERROE2HEERE S
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of HNO R -

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2017
—3-t%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and henefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind honuses contributions Total
wa 2R
£ 30k Ehfg ML EHEER #t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
IN:L S AEBTT AEBRTFT ARBTT AR®TT

Executive directors HiTES

Wu Zheyan REE 1,138 4 3 4 1,149

Xie Qingmei #Ex 9% 4 3 4 107

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, P4 8 8 8

Non-executive director FUTES

Wu Dongping RET 144 - - - 144

Independent non-executive directors BIFQTES

Lam Hin Chi EED 104 - - - 104

linZhongwei £EAR 1] - - - 98

Su Wengiang VG 92 - - - 98

. .. T T S0
1,678 8 6 8 1,700

‘:Fﬂif}%?*ﬂx*ﬁ_l@’&j 143
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)
AT IRAM e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)

8 DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEHFM
2016
“E-RE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Total
5o BER
YR EMHE BERD  BRGHEIER @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Executive directors BITES
Wang Jingiun I35E 82 - - - 82
Wu Zheyan REE 1903 - 2210 8 4121
Wu Qingshan REW - - - 7 7
Xie Qingmei #E 144 - 10 8 162
USRS - ;U S T S~ S i
Non-executive director FUITER
Wu Dongping RET 144 - 12 - 156
Independent non-executive directors BIFQTES
Lam Hin Chi B 103 - - - 103
Jin Zhongwei +EAR % - - - 9%
SuWengiang Y % - - - 9%
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, TR ..
2,572 - 2232 2 4827
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there REBEE_ZT—+tFR=T—"F+=A
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors =t—HILEFE: $§@W?ﬂirﬂ%$?§?
or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 9 below as SCP B2 9 FIT R %) 2 fA] 5 5 7 A £ S 9 3%
B s . gy
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as A A FOR - (FRRSI RS MEARE

SR MBARERNESD - RIEQBERE
B-RBE_ZT—LFR-_ZE—RF+=
A=Z1T—HALFE EFHEREBEOR
PEME AR BEREEAHH -

compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

144 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea)
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB #ETRIN » LUAREZT)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EBeHMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2016: HE-_FT—+tF+-A=+—HIFE"
three) are directors for the year ended 31 December 2017, TEEERFMALH  ME(ZT—XRF:

whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of the other three (2016: two)

=8)REE  EEOHMRKEIUE

individuals are as follows: FEEE N
2017 2016
—Z2—tf —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTR ARBTT
Salaries and other emoluments e R EH A 998 791
Discretionary bonuses E’]'i*éil 152 65
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGTEIH R 32 24
1,182 880
The emoluments of the three individuals (2016: two individuals) ZR(ZE—RF  MB)ERFHALY
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: HMN T THEE -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—REF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 AER
Nil to RMB1,000,000 T &= AR ¥ 1,000,000 7T 3 2
3 2
EFﬂI%*ExEBE’A?

“E—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

2 & BTSSR 2 M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)

10 LOSS PER SHARE 10

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 is based on the loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB40,556,000 (2016:
RMB22,295,000) and weighted average of 3,030,542,000 shares
(2016: 2,573,835,000 shares) in issue during the year ended 31
December 2017, calculated as follows:

BRER
HE-Z—+tF+-A=+—"BHLFEHE
BEAEBEBIEHEZE-TE—+tF+=A
=+—BIEFENERARERRE AEILE
BARMEA055600T(ZFE—RF: AR
¥ 22,295,0007T ) * A }3,030,542,000% E
BTN (=T — /R4 : 2,573,835,000 A& A%
M) HMETFASHE - HFWT -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares R AR NAE T #
Number of shares
B8 H
2017 2016
—®—t¥ T AF
‘000 ‘000
Th TFh%
Weighted average number of ordinary RERERREEEE
shares for the purpose of basic and s By @A AN #E 15 1
diluted loss per share 3,030,542 2,573,835

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and, therefore,
diluted loss per share are the same as the basic loss per share.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

/T\

11

BB IR R M«

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B #5759}

&)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

C UABRRESR)

1 Y% BERKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fittings and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE & RE
#F MREE REREE Rifi RE ERIR ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARWFT ARWTT ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT ARRTT ARWTT
Cost: B
At1January 2016 RZE—"¥-A-H 201,421 5,946 104,863 6014 7,175 199,992 525,411
Additions NE B 858 6,487 138 946 96,372 104,801
Disposal HeE (965) - (14) (88) - (1,067)
Transfers (=2 - 1,678 - - (1,678) -
At31 Decermber 2016 KoZ-AE+-A=+-8 201421 5839 113,028 6,138 8,033 294,686 629,145
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+%-R-B 201,421 5,839 113,028 6,138 8,033 294,686 629,145
Additions RE - - 6,410 136 24 105,908 12,478
Disposal HeE - - (5,694) - - - (5,694)
Transfers e 319,057 - 21,565 - - (340,622) -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=t-H 520,478 5839 135,309 6,274 8,057 59,972 735,929
Accumulated depreciation:  RaHFE :
At January 2016 RZE—"¥—A—-H 27,074 4,071 20,450 2942 4,373 58910
Charge for the year FRTE 9,319 1,438 10,792 682 929 23,160
Elimination on disposal RHERBTH - (883) (1) (84) (968)
At 31 December 2016 RZ—R"E+-A=1+—A 36,393 4,626 31,242 3623 5218 81,102
A1 January 2017 W-Z2—+£-f-H 36,393 4,626 31,202 3623 5218 81,102
Charge for the year FRTH 9814 1,106 1,373 608 855 - 23,756
Elimination on disposal PHERBEHE - - (2,421) - - - (2,421)
Impairment losses RERE - - 2323 - - - 2323
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=1-H 46,207 5732 42,517 4,231 6,073 - 104,760
Net hook value: WBESE:
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1—A 474,271 107 92,792 2,043 1,984 59,972 631,169
At 31 December 2016 i ey el = 165,028 1213 81,786 2,515 2,815 294,686 548,043
Buildings which are held for own use are situated in the PRC. URFENEFHREEER - R_F—+

At 31 December 2017, buildings with net book value of
RMB97,045,000 (2016: RMB82,278,000), plant and machinery
with net book value of RMB74,701,000 (2016: RMB32,054,000)
and construction in progress with net book value of
RMB2,266,000 (2016: RMB14,969,000) were pledged to banks
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note

24(c)).

F+ZA=+—B REFEAARE
97,045000L( Z F — RN F: AR
82,278,0007T) MEF - BREFEA AR
74701,000t( —ZF — R F: AR ¥
32,054,000 7T) B R 5 Ko i 28 LA I BR T (B
BARME226600T(ZFE—RF: AR
14,969,000 7T) AR TR 2 H M| T iR1T
ERAEE/NE TRITRENER (B R
F£24(0)) °

RRMEYIZERERDF
ZE—tEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
bR A B IRR M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &R UAEREZIR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 Y% BERSKE®)

(Continued)

During the year, one of the subsidiaries of the Group had no
operation and the plant and machinery relating to production
were obsolete. An impairment loss of RMB2,323,000 was
recognised in other net loss to write the carrying amount of the
plant and machinery down to its recoverable amount of
RMB3,936,000.

The recoverable amount was based on the fair value less cost
of disposal of the plant and machinery estimated by reference
to the cost to reproduce or replace in new condition the plant
and machinery being valued in accordance with current market
prices for similar plant and machinery, with allowance for
accrued depreciation as evidenced by observed condition or
obsolescence present, whether arising from physical,
functional or economic causes. The obsolescence rate in
measuring the amount of fair value was 15% in relation to plant
and machinery. Based on the fair value estimation,
management is of the view that impairment losses of
RMB2,323,000 is required in respect of plant and machinery,
which are used in the Group’s manufacturing and sales of
wooden products segment. The fair value less cost of disposal
of the plant and machinery is classified as a level 3
measurement.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HERI)  UAEREZIR)

g}

12 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 12 HEFENSR
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT

Cost: 5% 3
At 1 January n—HA—H 106,861 106,861
Additions NE 6,356 -
Disposal HeE (30,015) -
At31Decemoer W®Yt=A=t7R 8202 106861
Accumulated amortisation: Rty :
At 1 January n—A—H 6,799 4,863
Charge for the year FERZH 1,732 1,936
Disposal HE (643) -
At31December ~  BY=A=t-R v . 6,799
Net book value: IRERE :
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 75,314 100,062
Represented hy: Bp :
Current portion BNERER 5 1,664 1,966
Non-current portion JERNEREL 5 73,650 98,096
75,314 100,062
The lease prepayments represent costs of obtaining the land HEBNRIEAIBNAREM LML
use rights in respect of land located in the PRC and the M RAEMEENKAE KRBT E
capitalised costs relating to dredging and leveling of land. BRFEBEMNEREKAN - L EFHER =T
These leases expire between 2047 and 2083. AtFE2FN\=FEm °
At 31 December 2017, land use rights with an aggregate RZZB—tH+-_HA=+—H KREHE
carrying amount of RMB68,969,000 (2016: RMB100,062,000) BARE68,969,000T(ZFE—RF: AR
were pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted #100,062,000 7T ) B) - Hb 5 F#EE BL A&
to the Group (see note 24(c)). METRITREREERD(R M

24(c)) °

PRAENERERAT | 149
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

13 NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR 13 WYX BERKEHNIED
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND iR ERREA
EQUIPMENT
The amount mainly represented prepayments for construction ZERFERETCEIREREBFENR K
in progress and buildings. An analysis of non-current B - BERZENIFBRBENRD T
prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment RN
is as follows:
2017 2016
—=2—+t5F ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Prepayment for construction of iR A B A TR R

manufacturing complex 13,245 10,077
Prepayment for other constructions and  E @A RYME « BER

property, plant and equipment B ohiEUNEN 21,358 54,090

34,603 64,167

150 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

2 & BT SRR M aE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB #ETRIN » LUAREZT)

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 14 REE QTR
2017 2016
—E—+t%F —T—R
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Share of net assets EIEEEFE

24,434 23,355

Details of the Group’s interest in the associates are as follows:

REBREE R RNERFHBOT

Proportion of
ownership interest

FiAER L)
Place of Group's
establishment effective Held by Principal
Name of associate and operation interest a subsidiary activity
FHRED
BEATRE R REEHE EREG BMBARRE EEED
Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 45% 45% Trading of imported
("Lvyuan”) H timber
TAZRE HBER DR ([AIR]) BEEEOARN
Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy The PRC 45% 45% Research & development
Co., Ltd. ("Deliyuan”) Hr and sales of biomass
BEEMENREMERERRA energy
([EHR]) EME IR X
HE
Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading The PRC 45% 45% Whole sale of forestry
Co., Ltd. ("Zhonglisheng”) H products and
EFRARE S ERDE building material
([ A ]) WEEEmREM R
Fujian Longyan Zhangping Weston Wood The PRC 45% 45% Manufacture and sale of
Component and Material Company H wooden products

Limited ("Weston Wood")
BEAEEMELRINEAREEN R
BRAE ([HHTE])

AEmBBERHEE

Note:

(i) On 24 October 2017, the Group contributed capital of RMB1,350,000 to
Weston Wood.

Lvyuan, Deliyuan, Zhonglisheng and Weston Wood are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements.

st -

0] RZZ—tF+A-+MA  AEHRBHET
)T & AR¥ 1,350,000 7T ©

BRIR - BAIR - R RE R AT IR R AR A B
BMERARAERENRR ©

‘:Fﬂi%?*ﬂx*ﬁ_l@@j
“E—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

BB HRRM T

ra
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)
14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 14 REE QTR @)
Summary of financial information of the associates: ZEENRNMIBEERBE
Weston
Lvyuan Deliyuan Zhonglisheng Wood
#ik =R il RER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
-t —T-°%F IZB-t§E -T-F ZE-tf —T-F IB-tf
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AERTR ARBTT ARRTR AE%TT AR®TR AR¥TR AERTR
Non-current assets FRBEE 108 115 - - - - 2,99
Current assets RHEE 5,968 7,022 9,987 10,000 10,121 10,119 4,440
Non-current liabilities FRBasE - - - - - - =
Current liabilities LY (35) (683) (2) ] (115) (114) (4,304)
Net assets EEFE 6,041 6,454 9,985 9,993 10,006 10,005 3127
Group's share of net assetsof ~ AREEREEBL QAL
the associates BEFE 2,719 2,905 4,493 4,497 4,503 4,502 1,407
Revenue A 3,335 4,201 109 209 82 405 12,606
Profit or loss from continuing BERANES
operations (376) (286) (7) () (1) 5 126
15 GOODWILL 15 BHE
RMB'000
ARBTT
Cost: 5%
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 RZZB—+tF—A—BK
—+tF+=-_HA=+—H 4,300
Accumulated impairment losses: BB ERSIE -
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 RZZBE—tF—A—BK
—E—+EF+A=1+—8~ (4,300)

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2017

—2—t¥£+=ZA=+—H

At 31 December 2016

RZZE—ARF+=—RA=+—H

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

BB HRRM T

an\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HERI)  UAEREZIR)
16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 HEhemEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Available-for-sale equity securities: ATt HH&EEF &% :
Unlisted equity securities, at cost RETMRAZS - AR 2,495 2,495
The above financial assets represent investment in equity L eMEEENTREEEE EF ML
securities of a PRC local bank in Zhangping City, Fujian RITHRAFBSHRE - ZFREENMERT
Province. The investment does not have a quoted price in an EMERERMSTEREREAFTEE
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair value JERISERTE o
cannot be reliably measured.
17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 AMEBARIKERS
Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of ERMBATIMFBEIET -BREEE
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. BASN - TS BRI AT @A o
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of b I
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ FE 4 RR i
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities
ERITRME
30 A s #%/EmEE
NCEL ] HER A obd HE MiE TEEH
Green Oceans Investment Holdings  The British Virgin 10 shares of 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI") USD1 each
7 November 2011
Green Oceans Investment Holdings ~ EBRLEE 10RER1ETHRR REER
Limited (REETES])
Z2——%1+—AtH
King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
Limited 5 August 2010 HK$1 each wooden products
R (B#) ERERAR BE 10,000 HEPIREG
“2-ZF)\ATA BR1ETARR
EFﬂI%*HxEBE’A?

—=—

HEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 RBARIKNRER &)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of EATFRE
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ s
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERITREME

A AT g%/ 2fEE

LAFER hERAH e B MHE IEXH

Fujian Zhangping Kimura The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
Forestry Products Co. Ltd 17 December 1995 RMB380,000,000 sales of outdoor
(notes () and (i) wooden products

BREETANNEBRAA HE FER FERHEPIRHER
(B () % () —“WVAF+ZA++H  AKR¥380,0000007C

Zhangping Kimura Merry The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Engaged in projects of
Garden Wooden Structure 12 June 2010 RMB1,000,000 outdoor wooden
Design and Installation Co., Ltd. products including
(notes (i) and (iii)) the provision of

design and
installation services

BTN EBREARERR HE FER feEPIRERIER -
ZRBRDR (M) R (i) ZZ-TFXATCH AR1,000,0007 BERMEHRH R

ZER%

Merry Garden (Shanghai) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 24 February 2012 RMB1,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (iii)) through self-operated

retail shops

ZEFR (LB REERAT HE AR BREETEESE
(Wi () % (i) ZE-CH-AZ+mA AKE1,0000007 PAARER

Merry Garden (Xiamen) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 14 November 2012 RMB5,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (i) through self-operated

retail shops

FEBZR(EM)REERRA HE FER BREETEETE
(RI&E () & i) ZE-ZH+-A+mA  AKES50000007 POMRER

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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A IS RERM 5T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HERI)  UAEREZIR)

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 RBARINRER &)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of NG|
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ i3
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BERITREME
e B g%/ 2fEE
LAFER BERAH e B HE IEXH
Merry Garden (US) Inc. The United States of 100 share of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
(note (vi)) America USD1 each wooden products
10 January 2013
Merry Garden (US) Inc. ZHEAREHE 100f% HEPIMER
(B ) ZE-=%-AtH BR1ZTHRKA
Zhangping Merry Garden Import ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading of timber and
and Export Co. Ltd. 27 February 2013 RMB30,000,000 sales of outdoor
("MG Import and Export”) wooden products
(note (ii) and (iif)
BImEBRRELODERDR HE FER AHBHRHEERI
((ZBxE#HO]) ZE=FZAZ+tB  AR30,0000007T RER
(Hfat (i) & (i)
Merry Garden Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
(note (1) 3 August 2016 HK$1 each
FEZRIERERAT ) 1RER BTN REER
(Bizt0) 25 /\A=H
Merry Garden Biomass Energy Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited 10 October 2014 HK$1 each
ZEFEENERRERERAR AR 1R BTN RERR
ZE-WETATH
Zhangping Merry Garden Biomass ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
Energy Development Ltd. 31 March 2014 RMB80,000,000 sales of renewable
(notes (i) and (iv)) energy products
BImERXEENERR HE FER FERHERE
REBRAR (W0 REW) “E-mF=A=+-H AK¥%80,000,000C RER
EP%‘#E%*P&EBE’A?

“E—FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

A

BB HRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

C UAABRBESR)

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 RBARIKNRER &)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of FOF G
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ (s
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERITREME
A AT -t Y43t
LFER hERAH oF3 - B ME IEXH
Unicreed Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Investment holding
20 January 2011 HK$5,653.39 each
HNREEEERAT Bk 10,000 % RERR
—2—%-A-1H §R5,65339 B LRI
Unicreed Industry & Trade Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacture and
(formerly known as Unicreed 10 June 2011 USD7,850,000 sales of electronics
(China) Electronics Company products
Limited) (notes (i) and (ii)
BNEETEBRB A HE FER EERHEETEM
(AIEHNRE (FE)EFERAR) —T——FATH 7,850,000 ¢
(B2 () % ()
Notes: BiaE -
(i) These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the 0] ZEBRANTEKIHIIEBERE -

(iii)

PRC.

These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura.

The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

This entity is a limited liability company established in the PRC and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of MG Import and Export.

This entity is a limited liability company established in Hong Kong and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Limited.

The entity was a limited liability company established in the USA and was
deregistered on 7 November 2017.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

ZEERRNPERINERARFFEFANE
2EMBAR -

ZERRNEFLBERSE - AEALREUF

ZERA—RRTBERIZERATEREBR
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ZEER/NBFERILMNER AR RAN(FE)
ERERATNEEMBAF -

ZEBANEBRKZZARARTIR =
+—AtHEH-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TS » LUAREEZITR)

18 DEFERRED TAXATION 18 EEBIIE
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised EERHNELEHIBEENRBE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised FRARGEETEARRK P EERNELTH
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the BEE/(BE)FrREBWOT

movements during the year are as follows:

Unrealised
gainon PRC
Unrealised  derivative dividend
Deferred  profits on financial withholding Interest

income inventories instruments tax capitalisation Total
i
R I&W FERR
BEKA  REREHN  REDNE FOR ARERL #t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Deferred tax arising from:  EBERERE:

At 1 January 2016 RNZZ-rE-F-A 4,831 81 307 (1,707) (320) 3236
(Charged)/credited to profit or (ng)/AESR

loss (note 7(a) (H#7m) (290) (76) (587) - 17 (93¢)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AF+ZA=1T-A 4591 5 (280) (1,707) (309) 2,300
At 1 January 2017 W=E—+5-F—H 459 5 (280) (1,707) (309) 2300
(Charged)/credited to profit or (hg)/FAERR

loss (note 78) (i 79) (290) - 1958 - (3,580) (1912)
At 31 December 2017 R_2-tF+ZAZ+-R 4301 5 1,678 (1,707) (3,889 388
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A R RE I S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

18 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
(Continued)

18 EEFE &)
ERERNREHIBEENEBE
(%)

Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial position: REREHFERARPEENT -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREF T
Net deferred tax asset recognised in GBS R TR RERA
the consolidated statement of zﬁk%ﬁfﬁééﬂé
financial position 5,984 4,596
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERB TR ER PR
the consolidated statement of FERESREEE
financial position (5,596) (2,296)
388 2,300
19 INVENTORIES 19 #E&
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement @ REEFBMRARFTOEF
of financial position comprise: BEE
2017 2016
—E—tf —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Raw materials R 174,856 167,927
Work in progress EES 29,298 43,691
Finished goods EK @ 126,964 107,882
331,118 319,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB #ETRIN » LUAREZT)

19 INVENTORIES (continued) 19 EE@#)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories b) EEZREAZIGTAER

recognised as an expense and included in WEFEERESTT
profit or loss is as follows:
2017 2016
—Z2—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEF T
Carrying amount of inventories sold B &FEMEREE 430,018 394,506
20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 ES R HMEWRTIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBFIT
Trade and bills receivables ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&*ﬁlﬁ}}ﬂ%ﬂ&%ﬁ 110,650 128,400
Trade receivable from associates FEURES SRR E S 1,478 3,510
Total trade receivables B REWGRTE R 112,128 131,910
Prepayment for raw materials R R B 3R 63,927 86,497
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIA
(note 31 (f)(ii) (BtaE31(0(3i) = 9,561
Gross amount due from customers BREFARIZAEE
for contract work (note (i) (HEE()) - 708
Amount due from a related company FE N BE RN B R IE
(note 30 (c)) (K17E30(c)) 67 -
Amount due from associates /NI O 3,968
Other receivables H e U R IE 16,514 11,210
196,604 239,886
RRMEYIERAARA T

—TLEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coninuea
A BTSN e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f S BRI » UAARESR)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20 # 5 K H fth FE Y FE ()

Note: FifaE
(i) This balance includes retention receivables at 31 December 2017 of (i) WESEER - TE—+tF+-_A=-+—HBNEK
RMB708,000 (2016: RMB708,000), of which RMB708,000 was impaired for RE %/\EMWOS 000TL (=T —RF : ARKE
the year ended 31 December 2017. 708,0007T) « Hhf AR 708,000 tREE=T
— A=+ —BIFERRE -
All of the trade and other receivables, apart from those Br EX (VIR ZEEBRIN BRAIBEE
balances specified in (i) above, are expected to be recovered 5 % E 4t JE U 2008 ¥ — 4 iy Uk [B] 8% RE SR
or recognised as expense within one year. B o
(@) Ageing analysis (@) BREROMT
As at 31 December 2017, the ageing analysis of trade and RZE—+F+-A=+—01 &%
bills receivables (which are included in trade and other ZHAWIIBRREEENE 5 UK
receivables), based on invoice date and net of allowances EREWER(EFAES KAEME
of doubtful debts, is as follows: WskIE) BRES AT a0 T -
2017 2016
—Z—tf§ —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTIT
Within 1 month R1EAR 38,776 36,499
1to 2 months 122EA 25,738 23,305
2 to 3 months 223184 11,560 13,181
Over 3 months B3 1E A 36,054 58,925
112,128 131,910
Trade and bills receivables are normally due within 90 B S EWGRIE R ERERE — RN H A
days to 180 days from the date of billing. Further details BE OO0 A= 180 H A EIHA -
of the Group's credit policy are set out in note 31(a). BRAAEBEEERRE—SHBER
HEIFE31()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
R B 15 R R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HERI)  UAEREZIR)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20 # 5 K H th FE W FIE ()

\

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired (b) NMEBERE ZEER
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are W EAE R R RR ERERE 5 I
neither individually nor collectively considered to be FEREREBERR ST -
impaired are as follows:

2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFTT
Current B RN 77,526
Less than 1 month past due BEOR1EAR 6,223 2,059
1 to 3 months past due mE1=3M@A 1,542 896
More than 3 months but less than mERRAIEARIR
12 months past due 1218 A 9,587 41,024
More than 12 months past due B EREAE 1218 A 4,771 10,405
Amountspastdve @R 22123 54,384
112,128 131,910
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired K HAgORE R BB S K2 [@iT
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was BRI SR KV RRER B o
no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to 160 BB N0 LR (E B FE IR IR I —
a number of independent customers that have a good EAEBARTFECHENBYLE
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, P BREBRALH ANEEERL
management believes that no impairment allowance is BEAEY  BRAZZERNAE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not EUgmE - WEIEBRERES XSS
been a significant change in credit quality and the BIELRELER - ARBEWERZE
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group AR R RS o

does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

b2 & B RS R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & #5R 4

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

C UAABRBESR)

20 ES R HEMEWFIE®)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired by TERENE Z EUKERR
(Continued) (#%&)
The below table reconciled the impairment loss of trade TREAFEEZ S MEMEKRKIER
and other receivables for the year: BB E RS AR -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETIT
At 1 January n—A—H = -
Impairment loss recognised BRERBAEEE 3,493 -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 3,493 -
21 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 21 BRAFK

Pledged deposits with banks have been placed as security for
banking facilities and derivative financial instruments issued by

banks to the Group (see note 24(c)).

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(@ Cash and cash equivalents in the

22

consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated cash flow
statement comprise:

ERFIRITOFRE BIERIT A S H 3
HIRTTRE RITE SR T AREM (R

24(c)) °

iﬁﬁﬁiﬁé’&'{ﬁ%

@ R BRARKRES
Eﬁimu;‘é_%laq E’]ﬁﬂi&}'ﬁ
TEHEEWMBE

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Deposits with banks and other R1T R H M &
financial institutions HWrEFE 75,702 121,194
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 37,799 52,792
113,501 173,986

At 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents in the
amount of RMB91,424,000 (2016: RMB142,178,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NN bl

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

22 BEeRBEEEY &)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) BRA A& M B & K S P
cash generated from operations: IR
2017 2016
—Z=—tf —EREF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt AR®TT AREFIT
Loss before taxation BB ATE B (38,203) (20,678)
Adjustments for: BT S IEEL A%
Interest expense FEHE 6(a) 6,216 9,037
Depreciation e 6(c) 23,756 23,160
Amortisation of lease T E A e
prepayments 6(c) 1,732 1,936
Amortisation of deferred B PN £i
income 25 (1,163) (1,163)
Net foreign exchange loss SMNEEBFE 1,869 4,245
Changes in fair value of derivative #1744 m I A
financial instruments N EEE) 12,307 -
Interest income FEHA 5@) (3,405) (5,687)
Dividend income BB U A (354) (283)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEWE  BE NMKE
property, plant and equipment (Wz=) BB (105) 88
Gain on disposal of land use rights & +Hb & AU ES (580) -
Share of losses of FE(GHE = N ElE 18
associates, net of tax  HORRFRIE 271 65
Impairment of goodwill EERE 15 - 4,300
Impairment of property, M - B &EERE
plant and equipment 2,323 -
Impairment of trade and B 5 Rk E A FE R RIE
other receivables RE 3,493 -
Changes in working capital: gEEeE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 171 (3&0),/ %> (11,618) 16,944
Decrease in trade H 5 I HoAth FE U K18
and other receivables o 47,963 60,094
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and B 5 R HMPER A
other payables #mn O 3,816 (2,701)
Cash generated from operations RS S 48,318 89,357
RRLEYIRRAEIRA T

—E—FFR
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b2 & B RS R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EZREMENSFIE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREET T
Trade payables (note 23(a)) & 5 e FRIE (M5 23(0) 3,769 6,892
Receipt in advance TEU R IE 10,094 3,138
Amounts due to associates R NCIE ] 22,416 230
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMIT A
(note 31(A)(ii)) (Bt 3100(0) 12,307 7,692
Amount due to a director N —R2EERA 12 17
Amount due to a related company AR NGRS
(note 30(c)) (B 7£30(c)) 283 283
Other payables and accruals HAh FERRIE K
(note i) FERTE R (MaEi) 15,272 15,077
64,153 33,329
Note: Fifet

Balance mainly represents salaries, wages, bonus and other accrued
benefits, and payables for the purchase of property, plant and equipment.

All of the above balances are expected to be settled within one
year or repayable on demand.

(@ A maturity analysis of the trade payables is
as follows:

As at 31 December 2017, the maturity analysis of the
trade payables balance is as follows:

HEHRIBETS  TE  TARECEEIA
RBEME - BERREOENRE

PrA L S IEET R — FRENHIRE

@)

EZEMNFRIENIEHA S
W
R-ZE—+F+-A=+—HB B
ERREREIBRBA ST

2017 2016
—®—tE T AF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARETT

Due within 1 month or on demand MEARDHERSKIZERKER 3,169 4,410
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 1{& 81418 31& B R E| 2 E 600 2,482
3,769 6,892
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
R R T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B UAAREEZITR)

24 BANK LOANS 24 $RITER
(@) At 31 December 2017, the bank loans were @ N—_ZTE—+F+ = A
repayable as follows: =+—RB - BAEENRIT
BT

2017 2016

—Z2—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AB"TR ARBFT

Within 1yearorondemand  —fFAsEEx 233187 340,072
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR = 56,290
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRFER = -
______________________________________________________________________________________ - %6290

233,187 396,362

(b) At 31 December 2017, the bank loans were by " =—Z—+9F+ = H
secured as follows: =+— E BERMIETE

AR

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AB%TR ARBTF T

Bank loans (note 24(c)) IRITER(HTaE 24(c))

— secured — HiLH 232,005 371,362

— unsecured — L 1,182 25,000

233,187 396,362

RRAEYIERERAE

T EER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A R RE I S

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

24 BANK LOANS (continued) 24 ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%’\ (#)

(c) The amounts of banking facilities available ©) —ET—+Ft+A=1T—
to the Group and the utilisation at 31 K;‘EIT%HXE’JEEH Al
December 2017 are set out as follows: %ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ'l%ﬁm? -

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARET T

Banking facilities available AIERMIRITRLE
— secured — BHEA 394,939 507,021
— unsecured — A 1,182 25,000
396,121 532,021
Amounts utilised RN
— bank loans — RITEK 233,187 396,362
The secured banking facilities were secured by the EEMBITRE AT EENEREEE
following assets with carrying values as follows: TEHEHR
2017 2016
—Z—tf ZE-REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Pledged deposits (note 21) SRRER (A 21) 78,261 140,515
Buildings (note 11) B (W 11) 97,045 82,278
Plant and machinery (note 11) TS R w B (HYaE 11) 74,701 32,054
Construction in progress (note 11) IR (HE11) 2,266 14,969
Lease prepayments (note 12) HETEN R (T 12) 68,969 100,062

321,242 369,878
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;\\/

(Ex,oressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B BRI FF o

(B 5= BTSN

24 BANK LOANS (continued)

() The amounts of banking facilities available

to the Group and the utilisation at 31
December 2017 are set out as follows:
(Continued)

During 2017 and 2016, all of the Group's banking facilities
were subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants.

The Group has seven secured bank loans with carrying
amounts of RMB104,218,000 with maturity date during
2018. The loan agreements contain certain covenants on
profit for which the profit making requirement during
year 2017.

The Company complies with its obligation to pay and will
repay the principals when they fall due. The Bank
considered it not necessary at present to exercise its
rights given by the loan agreements upon the Group not
meeting the abovementioned covenant prior to the
respective maturity dates of the loans in 2017.

Except for the above, the Company has fulfilled the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities during 2017
and 2016. Details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 31(b).

C UABRRESR)

24 fﬁﬁﬁm(f“

(©)

E KEITEHME?H
ENEFSABROT &)

RIB—tFR-ZT—RF  £&H
MFTARITRE DR EITRSBEE
FIVMERERET —RERNETR
RIFTARR » ARBERZLY - A2
XBHEERRRELER - AEH
E BRI T BRRY

REBBEER T — \FIHNLE
BHEFRITER - REEEAARE
1042180007 - EXRMEE A S T
R =T FRBERN G @FE
ool

RAREFENFEELERAEE

HRETEE BELAEBER T

—tERENEBE KD EI A ATERK

ﬁﬁ;‘?@iﬁ BERITRR B ATHATTE
i T EAER -

BEEN RZB—LFR-F
—NF ARFICEKRBBIRREE
MR - FEAKEEERBESA
BB PR 31(D)

SRR AR A
e
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Zﬁ_ﬂ

AT

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25

26

2 B IR W e

(= BTSN - UARKESTR)

DEFERRED INCOME 25 EFEW A
The movements of deferred income are as follows: EEWAZE T -
2017 2016
—B—tF e
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
Balance at 1 January R—A—BM&EH 18,364 19,527
Government grant recognised in profit  AiBzRERAEMUI AL
or loss as other revenue (note 5(a)) BT B & (i 5) (1,163) (1,163)
Balance at 31 December Rt+-A=+—HB84s 17,201 18,364
Represented hy: Bp :
Current portion BREAEL 1,163 1,163
Non-current portion FERNERER > 16,038 17,201
17,201 18,364

Deferred income represented government subsidies that
compensated the Group for the cost of its land use right and
the cost of infrastructure development which are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
assets.

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching
to these government grants.

DEBENTURES

The Group has entered into agreements with two individual
third parties issuing unsecured debentures with principal
amounting to HK$20,000,000. The debentures are bearing
interest at 5% per annum, unsecured and repayable on 29
August 2017.

The debentures agreements with the above two individual third
parties were renewed and are bearing interest at 3% per
annum, unsecured and repayable on 29 August 2022.
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SEAE I A SR BT G - IR B A e
+ i AR A R R R EAA - R
BEEMTEATNNGZAR ARER
W -

AT 7 Bh & I AE BT A5 R FER G S AR F
I8 o

&%
AEEDERMEE =T EAFTLRE
17 7% % #1.20,000,000 7% 7T ) K 4R E 75
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B RBEEZAEATLNESHED
EEH - WEBI%TE - AEIEFAER
—E-—FNAZt+HBEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined
e BRI EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B R5) » UAARESR)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 BEX - @BERERE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances BREASEGEERS YRR

of each component of the Group’'s consolidated equity is set MREBHRATINGEERE TR - AT

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details BHEBDONFRFROEEF B

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of T

equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:

(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HEZEOHE S

The Company AT

Share Share  Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity

k* RiER ER R RitBH ek
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTT  ARBTRT  ARRTR  AERTR  ARBTR

Balanceattlamuary2016 R-®-A%-A-RMEER 2087 ewam A58 (S 88
Changes in equity for 2016: ZE-RENEGEE:

Loss for the year EREE - - - (4,685) (4,685)

QOther comprehensive income En2ElE - - 43877 - 43877

Total comprehensive income for the year A2 AU EE - - 43877 (4,685) 39,192

Balance at 31 December 2016 and R=-E-XF+-A=+-HR

Manany2007 “E-tE-A-EMER A% e L
Changes in equity for 2017; “E-tENHGER:

Loss for the year FRER - - - (6,372) (6,372)
QOther comprehensive income Hih2ElE - - (48,436) - (48,436)
Totalcomprenerise fncome orthe year  FREAGEEE R o 637 S4808)
ISsue of shares upon subscription TRELEIRG 4,557 54,521 - - 59,078

Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=1+-H
R 25,544 678,732 20,426 (28,631) 696,071
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A

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

BB HRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & #5R 4

C UAABRBESR)

27 BEX - RERKRE @)

(Continued)
(b) Share capital (b) AR
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBITRAE
2017 2016
—Z-t% ZERE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bi®A &F bl G x|
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T FHT T FHL
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at R—A—-AR+=A=t-H
1 January and 31 December BREB0OIATHE AR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2017 2016
—Z-tf “ERE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BiEA & R #EE x|
'000 HK$'000 000 HK$'000
T FHT T THL
Ordinary shares, issued and HiER - BORBR
fully paid:
At 1 January ®—A—A 2,573,835 25,738 2,573,835 25,738
ISsue of shares upon subscriptionon ~ R=E—+&-A+H
10 February 2017 (note (j) RERFRITRG (W () 514,500 5,145 - -
3,088,335 30,883 2573835 25738
Equivalent to (RMB'000) HERARETT) 25,544 20987
Notes: B

i) On 10 February 2017, an aggregate of 514,500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were conditionally issued to not less than six
placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
independent third parties, at a price of HK$0.13 per share. The net
proceeds would be retained for research and development
expenditure to enhance research and product competitiveness of
the Group and as general working capital of the Group. The shares
issued rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.
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N BT

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

g

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(x).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to statutory general reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into paid-up capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d)

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB670,527,000 (2016: RMB670,814,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed no final dividend (2016: proposed no final
dividend).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable cost.

The Group defined “capital” as including all components
of equity. Trade balances and short-term bank loans that
arise in the course of ordinary business are not regarded
by the Group as capital. On this basis, the amount of
capital employed by the Group at 31 December 2017
were RMB1,255,417,000 (2016: RMB1,132,291,000).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustment to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group.

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of certain covenants as disclosed in note 24(c),
neither the Company nor any of the subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements in
either prior or current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TS » LUAREEZITR)
28 COMMITMENTS 28

(@)

BRI T

Capital commitments outstanding at 31
December 2017 not provided for in these
consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

AP
(@)

NI FEARBHRER AL
EEBEENR T —+F
+-—A=+—HHXEE

HIBAEGET -
2017 2016
—e—t® T AR
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Contracted for (note (i) BRTA (FTaE ()

26,228 23,402

26,228 23,402

Note:

(i) Capital commitments are mainly related to construction of
factories for Zhangping Kimura and Unicreed and purchase of
equipment.

At 31 December 2017, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of
rental of offices and retail shops are
repayable as follows:

Operating lease commitments as lessee

HfaE

() AAEETBEMRETANRBRE
BRI S A R IBE RS

AN—E—+F+_HA=1—
H BEERAERTEEM
SH ARG EHAOE T
AEENRREEEERNK
wEawn

rERERE(EREBEA)

2017 2016
——tE T AF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETE

Within 1 year —FR 398 398
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERATR 86 478
484 876

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five
years, with an option to renew when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases include contingent
rentals.

BO—RNERE—FERFIE
MRERMA GRENERR AL -
ZEMOATBEXAES -

TREMERERARE | 173
—T—tFFER
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28 COMMITMENTS continued) 28 A& @)

Operating lease commitments as lessor

The Group leases out certain held for own use properties
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of 1
year. None of these leases include contingent rental. As at 31
December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of investment properties are as follows:

REREAE(EREEA)

AEBEHEE TRELEHOFED R
ME - ZERNNBHERS—F #TE
A - R-2F—EFt-_A=1+—
B RTAIEEEEROTARREYE
WERH) R R X EFRIB AR

2017 2016

—Z2—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBFT

Within 1 year —&R 66 -
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHRERAFENR = -
66 -

29

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

29

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in Group's liabilities arising

from financing activities.

METHELENEBZHE

TEREAAEEREETHELNA G B
ft -

Bank loans Debentures Total
MITER "% #ast
(note 24) (note 26)
(Pf5E24) (MF7E26)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT ARBTT
At 1 January 2017 —Z2—tf¥—HA—AH 396,362 17,890 414,252
Cash flows ReEnE (165,227) - (165,227)
Non-cash flows FHEEME
— Interest expenses — F e - 183 183
— Effects of foreign exchange — &} &2 2,052 (1,283) 769
At 31 December 2017 R-=E—tF
+—-A=+—H 233,187 16,790 249,977

Note: The cash flows from borrowings make up the net amount of proceeds
from borrowings and repayments of borrowings in the consolidated

statements of cash flows.
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed in notes 8,
9, 14, 20 and 23 of these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following significant related party

transactions during the years presented.

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties (a)

During the years presented, the directors are of the view
that related parties of the Group include the following

entity:

Name of party
oLy

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

30 EXEBARS

Bt ERAMBEmARMES 91420
BT BEERIEE T B RLON - REBR PR
FELTNEREH TS

B8 B 0 & 1 N BB R D A
A%
REORFE - EHERB - REENH
BT R IE T YIE R -

Relationships
F{R

Zhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism*

Development Company Limited (“Jiupengxi”)
FEETAMSEERREERAEREEAT (NAME]D)
Green Sea Capital Limited

Green Sea Capital Limited

Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd.*

APZRE 5 BR QA

Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy Co., Ltd.*

BEEmENREYEIRBR AT

Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading Co., Ltd.*

EFR I E 5B R A E]

Fujian Longyan Zhangping Weston Wood Component
and Material Company Limited*

BRARETETLRTEREEMEERAAF

*  For identification purpose only

A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.
REEEGINILERT - REERARBIESE -
A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.
REEEGINILERT - REERARBIESE -
An associate of the Group.

REEZHEAT] o
An associate of the Group.
REEZHEE QT o
An associate of the Group.
RER 2B RE]
An associate of the Group.

REBZBERE] -

el

* {EHER)

RREIZERAER A
—E—FFR
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXBEBHAERS (@)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Significant related party transactions (b)) BEXEBHIRZS
Particulars of significant related party transactions during FIRFERNERBE T ZHNFED
the years presented are as follows: Nk
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Sales of wooden products to Lvyuan RIAR IR S & R & @ 1,757 4,616
Sales of wooden products to Deliyuan BERRIEE RS D = 272
Sales of wooden products to Zhonglisheng  raeh | 5% 84 & AR & H - 472
Sales of wooden products to Weston Wood [ g ATIE S5 & AR S 5,365 -
Other revenue from Weston Wood 2 B 3 T R ) EL A s 2 321 -
Purchase of raw materials from Weston Wood 4] g 8 48 £2 % R A1k 9,622 -
The directors confirm that the above sales and purchase EERR LMEERSINEES

transactions are entered into with trading terms similar B = FEI B LR SIERETAL

to those with third parties.

() Amounts due from/(to) related companies € MU () A RI0E
RMB'000
ARBTIT
Amount due to Jiupengxi Bt BsERIB
Balance at AR
— 1 January 2016 ——;?—/‘—\i—ﬁ—El 1,007
— 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 ——E—RF+-A=+—H
&_T +tF—A—H (283)
— 31 December 2017 ——F—+F+=ZA=+—H (283)
Maximum balance outstanding BEsEEs
— during 2016 —R=ZE— /\E 1,007
The amount due to a related company was arisen from FERBEEARZIETRE —REER
normal sales transactions. It was unsecured, interest-free 5o mERE AEIKR - ¢ B8 KTEH
and expected to be settled according to credit term BRI E A5 = LA B IGRE
which is similar to that with third parties. i o
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

30 EXBEBHERS @)

() Amounts due from/(to) related companies € MU (F) @ n R skIE
(Continued) (#%&)
RMB’'000
ARBFIT
Amount due from Green Seas &Ik Green Seas Capital Limited
Capital Limited E 3]
Balance at FEERTA
-1 January 2016 —=—ZT—R~"¥—HA—H -
——E-RFE+A=+—8K
- 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 —E—+tF—A—H -
- 31 December 2017 ——F—+HF+=-A=+—H 67
Maximum balance outstanding ERAERES
— during 2017 —RIT—+F 67
— during 2016 —RIE—RF -

The amount due from a related company was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

RN A B AEER - 285
BERME -

TREEREABHHN
AEEEBEREASHH (2EH

A8 RMFEINRIRBENE N ARA
EENETERSFEENTIR)NT

2017 2016

—Z2—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Short-term employee benefits KRR B AR F 2,572 5,613
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 27 47
2,599 5,660

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions fall under
the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

BEB T ATE TARA ] (R
6(b)) °

FER ZEM 2 ETARA
BT 32 S TR L RIS

1AAEFTFUE M BB R 5 5 R E

%5 -

HRAEYERBRD A

—E—FFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f S BRI » UAARESR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price arises in the normal course of the Group's
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group only
places deposits with major financial institutions, which
management believe are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
usually requires upfront payment for sales of goods to
new customers. For export sales, the Group generally
requests settlement by letter of credit issued by financial
institutions or by wire transfer for certain customers with
good trading history. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all new customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and are also performed on existing
customers on a periodic basis. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and may take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group offers 90 days of credit to export
sales customers with good trading history and offers 180
days of credit to the existing domestic sales customers.
Generally, debtors with significant overdue balances are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2017,
5% (2016: 1%), of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and 32%
(2016: 15%), was due from the five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose it to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

31 sRiIAREERAFE®R)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

31 srREREERAFE®S)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) b) RBERR#E)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRANAEB R ARRETES R
maturities at 31 December 2017 of the Group’s and the BERZZ—+tF+-A=+—HH®
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are FIpAHEHHE -  ZemBEHIER
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including AHARUBRERE(BREERELH
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, PR (W)FE)) RS BIE & R
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the WATREFHHE AR B A RAE
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the B RANBEEREENFEENR
Company are required to settle these liabilities. FERAEMETE -
2017
k- St 43
Within More than  More than Total
1year 1yearbut 2yearshut contractual Carrying
oron less than less than undiscounted  amount at
demand 2 years 5years cash flow 31 December
—ERE g% BAzE fTHRER ®+-A=+-A
BEX BIRZE BYREE  RAEREEH HIREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARRTR AE®TR ARRTR AERTR
Bank loans RITER 236,847 - - 236,847 233,187
Debentures &% 676 504 18,130 19,310 16,790
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 64,153 - - 64,153 64,153
301,676 504 18,130 320,310 314,130
2016
ZERF
Within More than More than Total
1 year 1year but 2 years but contractual Carrying
oron less than lessthan  undiscounted amount at
demand 2 years 5years cashflow 31 December
—ERME BR—F i) AHRER RTZA=T-H
BEX BARZE BOREE  ReRELE WEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ANEETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Bank loans RITER 346,443 57,865 - 404,308 396,362
Debentures ) 18,470 - - 18,470 17,890
Trade and other payables B REMENTIE 33,329 - - 33329 33329
398,242 57,865 - 456,107 447 581
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(©)

0]

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

31

EEEMREER AFER)

Interest rate risk (€ FIZERE
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from AEENMERBEBREMER - 1%
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at SFENF R R EE AR EERS R
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate AAEEERReREFEAR R A
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The FEMERRE - NEREAER - A
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by SEMF R DI N T ) -
management is set out in (i) below.
Interest rate profile M FERR
The following table details the interest rate profile TRFIR-_F—tF+-A
of the Group’s total borrowings at 31 December =T BAREERAEOT
2017: AR -
2017 2016
—Z—tf ZZ-RF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERfE & R L8
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT
Fixed rate borrowings: TEREH:
RMB, EUR and USD AR¥ - BITRET 0.66%~ 163,941 0.15%- 264,790
bank loans BITER 5.58% 6.31%
Unsecured debentures EERES 3.13% 16,790 5% 17,890
Variable rate borrowings: iz 8 %
RMB, EUR and USD ARE BTk 1.31%- 69,246 0.72%— 131,572
bank loans ETRITER 7.27% 7.04%
Total net borrowings BIERTE 249,977 414,252
Net fixed rate borrowings as & S s L@
a percentage of total net BRFENEDL
borrowings 72% 68%
RREYRRAERAT

“E—FFR
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

VALUES (continued)
() Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB589,000 (2016: RMB1,118,000). Other
components of equity would not be affected by the
changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re- measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s
profit after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis at 31 December 2016 has been performed
on the same basis.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HERI)  UAEREZIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 €REMREENRAFE &)
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through AEBERHSNEYRR  FTER/UE

sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in USD
and EURQ, currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk associated
with the bank borrowings as the Group's borrowings are
denominated in RMB, USD, HKD and EURO.

During the years presented, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts with major state-
owned banks in the PRC mainly to acquire RMB to
mitigate against currency risk on receivables
denominated in USD, HKD and EURO. All of the forward
exchange contracts have maturities of less than one
year.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had foreign currency
forward contracts with their fair values recognised as
derivative financial instruments (assets) of RMB Nil (2016:
RMB9,561,000) and derivative financial instruments
(liabilities) of RMB12,307,000 (2016: RMB7,692,000) and
are included within “Trade and other receivables” (note
20) and “Trade and other payables” (note 23)
respectively. The changes in fair value of the foreign
currency forward contracts were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 5(b)).

BIGEER U EEARENER (5
TTREIT)FHERNHEERRE(EL
FEMRIR - AN FRIB MRS 4E8R)
ITEMEB R

HRAEENERTTUAARE X
T BTUMETEHE - B AEE TR
EERRITRERERNE AR -

PRI A » 7855 B S o B ) K Y
BIRITAILINEEHENEAARY
AR LASETT - BT MBUTAHERE
WERR B R - FTAEEBINES
KR E IR RIS A —F AR ©

R-E—+F+-A=+—10 K&
EINSREIE NN DA FERITES R
TEBEE)ARBZL(ZZ—RF:
AR¥9,561,00070) RITHES BT H
(BE) AR12307,000t( = F
— N ARBE7,692,00070) HER
W5 BIETA [ E 5 K H b fE Y 300E |
(P52 20) R [ 5 % . Ath JiE £<) 7R
(BH3E23) - INERHBE N AT EE
BOREEBRR P ERNZE
5(b)) e

AR ERAT
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VALUES (continued)

()

C UAABRBESR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 £riEREERAFE#)
(d) Currency risk (continued) d sEE=g@
Exposure to currency risk (i) EB%ER
The following table details the Group’s exposure at TRFNAEER=_Z—tF
31 December 2017 to currency risk arising from +ZA=+—HEEE AN
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a B AN E T EARE ER
currency other than the functional currency of the PHREESEBEMELENE
entity to which they relate. For presentation Rk RAEZ - EREE
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown AARMSR - F A HRE A
in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the HEREFHOFERE - HEGUA
end of reporting period. Differences resulting from R AN e E B TIRNE
the translation of the financial statements of the B ERERBRENAEENS
entities with functional currency other than RMB BB EENZETERIBRIN
into the Group's presentation currency are
excluded.
The Company does not have any significant RARWEEMEAEREE
financial assets or liabilities denominated in SEEUNENEEEUINE
currencies other than its functional currency and it BEEHE - MEAZEREER
is not exposed to significant currency risk. Bz o
2017 2016
Z8-tE ZE-RF
Usb Euros AUD CHF JPY RMB usb Euros AUD CHF Y RMB
$1 BT AT BfiS  BE AR 3T Er A B AE  ARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'00O
ABRTT ABMTT ABMTT ABRTR ABRTR ABBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Trade and other BARER
receivables JEURE 33,587 - 43 - - 0 B85 - - - -
Cash and cash BeREE
eclivelents £EY 0709 184 147 - 1w uw 2 - - - W
Pledged deposits B AR 21563 13849 - 40849 - - - - - - -
Bank loan HIER (17,107)  (62,418) = = = = 677700 (78,767) - - - -
Trade and other BARER
Dayables ERZE (11,159) = (1) S = - (22) - - - -
Gross exposure arising 2 AAER
from recognised BEEEH
assets illet
and liabilities 67,593 (48,385) 5797 40,849 1 318 699 (78,765) - - - 29
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & #57R4

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained

C UABRRESR)

31 sRiIAREERAFE®R)

d) EEERR )
(i) SBESH

TRIVRAAA E MR RE T
BOBRT  NEBENKRTIEL
M (R AR ) B 3R 5
EmREESES (AEEAL
BEAZERNRR) MELDN
BB 2 8) o 1 as ) H b B2 5

constant. Other components of equity would not TEZINEEREH T L
be affected by changes in the foreign exchange
rates.
2017 2016
—Z—tf —TRF
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
fRREas BRA R
SER REZRT SN E RARE A
R /(FR) kR /(FR)  E£A/(THR)  EA/(TH)
RMB'000 RMB'000
AER®TR ARBTT
usb e 5% 2,873 5% 297
(5)% (2,873) (5)% (297)
EURO BT 5% (2,056) 5% (3,348)
(5)% 2,056 (5% 3,348
AUD B 5% 246 5% -
(5)% (246) (5)% -
CHF AR 5% 1,736 5% -
(5)% (1,736) (5)% -
RMB against HK$ ARBEHET 5% 13 5% 12
(5)% (13) (5)% (12
EP%‘#E%*P&EBE’A?

“E—FFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &R UAEREZIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after
tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency.
The analysis at 31 December 2016 has been
performed on the same basis.

(e) Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group's products include, fir and pinewood. The Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these raw
materials which are influenced by the global market as
well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could
adversely affect the Group's financial performance. The
Group historically has not entered into any commodity
derivative instruments to hedge the potential commodity
price changes. The Group monitors its commodity price
risk by widening its supply base and performs bulk
purchase when the price of raw materials is low.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair values

(i)

(i)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include loans and receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, pledged
deposits, trade payables and other payables,
debentures and bank loans.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, pledged deposits, trade payables and
other payables, debentures and bank loans
approximates fair value.

Financial instruments carried at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technigue as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

31

EEEMREER AFER)

(f)

AFE

M

(i)

REAVEFENERIA

REAFEAENESRTAS
BERRERHE Re kR
TEHEEBY 5 REMEUK
B BEBER - BSREM
BN RIR - BHFRIRITER -

ERNHEEHNE  Rekie
ZEY B REMEEK
B BEAER - BHREM
e IR - B RIRITERZ
FREEREQFERS -

BAVEIIRNERTIA
RFEFRHE
TRENAEEHS R T AR &
= HIRE A R A I I B R
ENATE XHBEATEY
BIEERFE35 - AFEF
EEEN=—RRFERE K
RNHEFEDBNER IS
EW TN ETDEN R ABUE
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A B TR R T e

(Ex,oressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&

H BRI

C UAABRBESR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

VALUES (continued)
(f)  Fair values (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

As at 31 December 2017 the Group's derivative
financial instruments assets and liabilities
amounting to RMBNil and RMB12,307,000
respectively (2016: assets and liabilities of
RMB9,561,000 and RMB7,692,000 respectively)
(notes 20 and 23) were carried at fair value, and
these instruments fall into Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued)

(ii)

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in
Level 2 is determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the
current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government yield curve as at the
end of reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

There were no other financial assets or liabilities
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
not carried at fair value

The carrying values of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

31 eEEMREER AR ER)

H 2DFE®E
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(iii)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &R UAEREZIR)

32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32 ARIEEMBAARRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Kt et AR®TTRT ARETIT
Non-current assets ERDEE
Interests in subsidiaries  RMEREOREE 7 .. 712674 676,257
Current assets B E
Deposits and other prepayments T REMIEN T 439 400
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al = NCIE S 33 33,927
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReFEY 1,496 785
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1968 35112
Current liabilities mENARE
Other payables Hh A RuE 1,781 1,678
Debentures & 2 - 180
1,781 19,568
Netcurrentassets =~ =ZRBpREs&® 00 187 15544
Total assets less current assets BRERERTTSE 712,861 691,801
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Debentures &5 26 16,790 -
NET ASSETS HEBE 696,071 691,801
Equity gL 27(a)
Share capital B 25,544 20,987
Reserves #E 670,527 670,814
TOTAL EQUITY HEoEn 696,071 691,801
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZZ—N\F=ZA=ZTAEEFSHE
26 March 2018. N -
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE BiEx
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
T A, =
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

33

34

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Green Seas
Capital Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This entity does
not produce financial statement available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

33

34

HEERKERERA

EFERA RZZ—+F+=ZA=+—8"
AE B EHE R &KERT AGreen Seas
Capital Limited * Z A AR EBRLZES T
AL o W EEE W AR RN ISIRE -

BE-S—LF+=f=+—
Lk 4 5 BB 4 M R 048
T MTERRRR A RY
BEURSHRAaMBHREBRH LA BRE
SHEAPE RGBS BIER] KA £ -
HRBE-T—tF+A=1+—HLHF
EHARER - BWRNERS M HRERAR
- ERRETIIREERNEEA RS
Ig o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTHAMAEsZE

H S IR LW

Share-Based Payment (Amendments to IFRS 2)
AR A7 45 ZE R 0 -7 35 (BB B 75 ¥ 5 A2 B 28 2 SR B AT AR)

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
BRI 2ERIZE 9% - ST A

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BB SR EERE 155 BFEAHKE

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Amendments to IFRS 15)
EPEA M (BB RS 2ERIE 155785 40)

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)
REWHEERE (BER S ERIE 405 EFTAR)

IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
BRI B EENRBELZEGE 229 - INER S RBHNRE

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
BRI mELNRERERFE 235 @ PISTHERATHEE L

IFRS 16, Leases
BIFR M B EEAIE 1655 - HE

1 January 2018
—2-\F—A—H

1 January 2018
—ZT-N\F—HA—H

1 January 2018
—E2-N\F—HA—H
1 January 2018
—E-N\F—H—H

1 January 2018
—E2-N\F—-H—H

1 January 2018
—ZT-N\F—HF—H

1 January 2019
—ZE—-NF—A—H

1 January 2019
—E—-NF—A—H

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

(Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28)
KEEMEBENRNSELE L HNEELERTE
(BB B Fs s 2 R 28 105 R BIBR 2 5T 2ERIZE 28 SR8 5T AN)

To be determined*

fFE *
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 34
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

Note:

* The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments continues to be
permitted.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the
Group's accounting policies and financial statements.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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